Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP

Independent Auditor’s Report
To the Members of Oneg7 Communications Limited

Report on audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

1. We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of Oneg7 Communications Limited
(“the Company”), which comprise the Standalone Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2020, and the Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive Income), Standalone Statement of Changes in
Equity and Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year then ended, and notes to the Standalone
Financial Statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory
information.

2. Inour opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid
Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act") in the
manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2020, and total comprehensive income
(comprising loss and other comprehensive income), changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then
ended.

Basis for opinion

3. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under Section 143(10)
of the Act. Our responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India
together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of matter
4. We draw your attention to the following matters -

a) Note 2.1 to the Standalone Financial Statements, which describes the management’s assessment of the
impact of the outbreak of Coronavirus (Covid-19) on the business operations of the Company. The
management believes that no adjustments are required in the financial statements as it does not impact
the current financial year, however, in view of the various preventive measures taken (such as complete
lock-down restrictions by the Government of India, travel restrictions etc.) and highly uncertain
economic environment, a definitive assessment of-the impact on the subsequent periods is highly
dependent upon circumstances as they evolve.
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b) Note 36 to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding the non-settlement of foreign currency
payables as at March 31, 2020 amounting to Rs 0.06 crores and Rs 0.13 crores, due for more than twelve
months (time period extended from six months via RBI circular - RBI/2019-20/242 A.P. (DIR Series)
Circular No.33 dated May 22, 2020) and three years, respectively from the date of imports and non-
realisation of foreign currency receivables as at March 31, 2020 amounting to Rs 25.88 crores and Rs
0.53 crores, due for more than fifteen months (time period extended from nine months via RBI circular
RBI/2019-20/206 A. P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 27 dated April 01, 2020) and three years, respectively
from the date of exports, being the time period permitted under the RBI Master Direction on Import of
Goods and Services vide FED Master Direction No. 17/2016-17 dated January 1, 2016 (as amended) and
RBI Master Direction on Export of goods and Services vide FED Master Direction No. 16/2015-16 dated
January 1, 2016 (as amended), respectively, issued by the Reserve Bank of India. The Company has
applied to the Authorised Dealer seeking permission for extension of time period for settlement of the
payables and realisation of the receivables and for write-off of certain receivables outstanding for a period
exceeding three years.

Our opinion is not modified in respect of the above matters.
Other Information

5. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises
the information included in the Directors’ report, but does not include the Standalone Financial Statements
and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements does not cover the
other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. In connection with our
audit of the Standalone Financial Statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the Standalone Financial
Statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information,
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged With Governance for the Standalone
Financial Statements

6. The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view of the
financial position, financial performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Accounting Standards specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies;
making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the Standalone
Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error.

7. In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s
ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so. Those Board of Directors are also responsible for
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

8.

10.

11.

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial Statements as a
whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that
includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit
conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these Standalone
Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial Statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by management.

e Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial Statements, including
the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial Statements represent the underlying transactions
and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that
we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that
may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

12. Asrequired by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”), issued by the Central Government
of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the Annexure B a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

13. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a)

(b)

(©

(d)

(e)

®

(g)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge
and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it
appears from our examination of those books.

The Standalone Balance Sheet, the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss (including other
comprehensive income), the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity and Standalone Statement of
Cash Flows dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account.

In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the Accounting Standards
specified under Section 133 of the Act.

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2020 taken on
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2020 from being
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act.

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of
the Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure
A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 of the
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and to the best of our information and
according to the explanations given to us:

i. The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its financial position in its Standalone
Financial Statements — Refer Note 28 (c) to the Standalone Financial Statements.

ii. The Company had long-term contracts including derivative contracts as at March 31, 2020 for which
there were no material foreseeable losses.

iii. There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31, 2020.

iv. The reporting on disclosures relating to Specified Bank Notes is not applicable to the Company for
the year ended March 31, 2020.
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14. The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals
mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

e

Amitesh Dutta )’//’/,
Partner ‘ A -

Place: Gurugram Membership Number: 058507
Date: August 2, 2020 UDIN : 20058507AAAADJ9884
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Act

1.

We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of Onegy
Communications Limited (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2020 in conjunction with our audit of the
Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

2. The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls

based on the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI).
These responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its
business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

3.

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) and the
Standards on Auditing deemed to be prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act to the extent applicable
to an audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of internal financial controls and
both issued by the ICAI. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls with reference to financial statements was established and maintained and
if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal
financial controls system with reference to financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our
audit of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system with reference to financial
statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

6. A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles,
A company's internal financial controls with reference to financial statements includes those policies
and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and
fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the
company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that could have a material effect
on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with reference to financial statements

7. Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to financial statements,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may oceur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation
of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements to future periods are subject to
the risk that the internal financial control controls with reference to financial statements may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate. ‘

Opinion

8. Inouropinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system
with reference to financial statements and such internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements were operating effectively as at March 31, 2020, based on the internal control over financial
reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control
stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Also refer paragraph 4 (a) of the main audit report

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registration Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta %

Place: Gurugram Partner ) ‘T‘
Date: August 2, 2020 Membership Number: 058507
UDIN : 20058507AAAADJ9884
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i.  (a) The Company is maintaining proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details

and situation, of fixed assets.

(b) The fixed assets of the Company, have been physically verified by the Management according to a

phased programme designed to cover all the items over a period of three years which, in our
opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of the Company and the nature of its assets.
Pursuant to the programme, a portion of the fixed assets has been physically verified by the
Management during the year and no material discrepancies have been noticed on such verification.
According to the information and explanations given to us, the existence of point of sale machines
lying with customers is considered on the basis of the ‘active user status’ of the customers which is
tracked from payment gateway panel.

(c) The title deeds of immovable properties, as disclosed in Note 3 (b) on Right to use assets to th

ii.

ii.

iv.

vii. (a)

Standalone Financial Statements, are held in the name of the Company.

The Company is in the business of rendering services, and consequently, does not hold any
inventory. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(ii) of the said Order are not applicable to the
Company.

The Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189 of the
Act. Therefore, the provisions of Clause 3(iii), (iii)(a), (iii)(b) and (iii)(c) of the said Order are not
applicable to the Company.

In our opinion, and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
complied with the provisions of Section 185 and 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 in respect of the
loans and investments made, and guarantees and security provided by it.

The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public within the meaning of Sections 73, 74,
75 and 76 of the Act and the Rules framed there under to the extent notified.

The Central Government of India has not specified the maintenance of cost records under sub-
section (1) of Section 148 of the Act for any of the services provided by the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company
examined by us, the Company is generally regular in depositing undisputed statutory dues in
respect of professional tax, though there has been slight delays in a few cases and is regular in
depositing undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax,
employees’ state insurance, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs , duty of excise, value added tax,
cess and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate authorities. Also refer
note 28 (c)(iii) to the Standalone Financial Statements regarding management's assessment on
certain matters relating to provident fund.
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viii.

Xiv.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company

examined by us, there are no dues of income tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of customs, duty of
excise, value added tax or goods and services tax which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and explanation
given to us, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowings to any financial
institution or bank or Government or dues to debenture holders as at the balance sheet date.

The Company has not raised any moneys by way of initial public offer, further public offer
(including debt instruments) and term loans. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(ix) of the
Order are not applicable to the Company.

During the course of our examination of the books and records of the Company, carried out in
accordance with the generally accepted auditing practices in India, and according to the
information and explanations given to us, we have neither come across any instance of material
fraud by the Company or on the Company by its officers or employees, noticed or reported during
the year, nor have we been informed of any such case by the Management.

The Company has paid/ provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act. Also refer
paragraph 14 of our main audit report.

The Company is not a Nidhi Company and the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it.
Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

The Company has entered into transactions with related parties in compliance with the provisions
of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act. The details of such related party transactions have been disclosed
in the Standalone Financial Statements as required under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS)
24, Related Party Disclosures specified under Section 133 of the Act.

The Company has made private placement of shares during the year under review, in compliance
with the requirements of Section 42 of the Act. The amounts raised have been used for the purpose
for which funds were raised.

The Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or persons
connected with him. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xv) of the Order are not applicable to
the Company.
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XVi. The Company is not required to be registered under Section 45-1A of the Reserve Bank of India Act,
1934. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3(xvi) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm Registratiop Number: 012754N/N500016

Amitesh Dutta /
Place: Gurugram Partner -

Date: August 2, 2020 Membership Number: 058507 \ /)/
UDIN : 20058507AAAADJ9884



Fl lal nt
One97 Communlcallons Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Standalone Balance Sheel as al March 31, 2020
(Amounts In INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

ASSETS

Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Right-of-use-assets
Capital work in progress
Intangible assets
assets under

Tnvestment in subsidianies
lovestment in associe
Financial assets

Investments

Loans

Other financial assets
Cuurent tax assets
Other non-currenl assets
Total Non-Current Assels

Current assets
Financial assets
Investments
Trade receivables
Cash and cash equivalents
Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Loans
Other financial assets
Other current assels
Total Current Assets

TOTAL ASSETS
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

EQUITY
Share capital
Instruments entirely equity in nature
Other equity
Total Equity

LIABILITIES

Non-curreni Habilitles
Financial liabilities
Bomowings
Lease liabilities
Contracl Liabilities
Provisions
Tolal Non-Current Liabiiites

Current Habilitles
Financial liabilities
Borrowings
Lease liabililies
Trade payables
(a) Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enterpr
(b) Tolal Outstanding dues other than (a) above
Others financial liabililies
Contract Liabilities
Other current labilities
Provisions
Total Current Diabltiies

Tolal Liabllities

TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITLES

Asal Asal
Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
3(a) 24297 268 72
3(b) 25284
17 5058
' 1182 1742
016 022
; 61805 69344
& 21554 174 10
7(b) 22270 100 19
(c) 15523 104 39
7d) 1,970 41 136 8}
484.08 458 64
-» 84.00 14104
S 4,269.53 2,145.55
7(a) 315551 247265
3 32750 24221
10(a) 285,60 23522
10(b) : 621
%(c) 6933 30363
7(d) L1284 189283
9 i 1,286 71 - 1,384 83
6,237.49 6,537.58
10.507.02 - 8,683.13
11¢a) 6043 57353
11(a) . =
11(b) - 835102 5978 50
8,411.45 6.036.03
13(a) s 2696
Ib) 169 90
14(b) 1225
12 - 16 68 w6
526.83 35,61
13(2) 201 09 695 50
3(b) M 10
13(b) 1133 1124
13(b) 562.05 66204
13(c) 19915 699 18
14(b) 294 35 35287
14(a) 217.51 15303
12 - 4716 1763
' 1,566.74 2,611.49
2,095.57 - 264710
o i 10,507.02 8,683.13
— LLE

noles

The above Standalone Balatice Sheet shoui 2 read in conjunction with the

This is the Standalone Balance Sheet referred Lo in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Foom regisgration numbar: B1I7SIN NS00TE

AdiltesH Dt
Pariner
Membenghip Mo 058507

Place Cf ud "\r{.\(‘\f\

o A._;?._}.s t 22020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
One97 Communications Limited

Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2020

S\Y‘ -
Viktas Carg “ryviind Kumar Singhanla

Chief Financial Officer Conipany Secretary
Place: Noida Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2020 Date: May 22, 2020
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Standalene Financlal Statements
One97 Communications Limtted
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for (he year ended March 31, 2020

(Amounts In INR Crores, uitltis otherwise stated)

Continuing operations

Tncome

Revenue from operations
Other income

Tolal Income*

excluding total income from discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2020: INR

Nil (March 31,2019 : INR 1 $3) (Refer note 32)

Expenses

Employee benefils expense

Finance costs

Depreciation and amortization expense
Other epenses

Tolal expenses”

*excluding expenses of discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2020: INR Nif

(March 31, 2019 : INR 6 84) (Refer note 32)

Loss before exceptional iems and tax from continuing operations

Exceptional ilems
Loss before tax from continuing operatlons

Income Tsx expense
Current lax

Tolal Tax expense

Loss for the year from continuing operatlons

Loss for the year from discontinued operations (Refer note 32)

Loss for the year

©Other comprehensive lncome

Items that will not be reclassified Lo profi or loss tn subsequent years

Re-mesurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit plems
Changes in fair value of equity instruments &t FVTOCI
Total Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss) for the year

Total Comprehensive Income/ (Loss) for the year

Basic & Diluted Eamings per share from contimiing oparations (INR per Share)

Basic & Diluted Eamings per share from discortinued operations (INR per Sharc)

Basic & Diluted Eamings per share from inuing mnd di

{INR per Share)

Noles For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
15 311510 304987
6 23549 34174
3,350.59 3,391.61
17 82512 62778
18 45.56 1650
19 14318 75.81
20 4,847.68 6.53471
586154 7254.80
(2,510.95) (3.863.19)
2 32218) (9102)
2.83313) (3.95421)
27 0.05 y 012
0.05 0.12
(2,833.18) (3954.33)
32 (531
Q,833.18) (3.959.61)
26 (0.70) 043
020 129
sty (0.14)
{3.959.75}
2 (486 58) (705 02)
22 ©95)
2 (486 58) (705 97)

The above Stendalone Ststemant of Profit and Loss should be read in conjunction with the accompanrying noles.

This is the Stmndalonc Statement of Profit and Loss referred 1o in our report of even date.

For Price Ch 4 A LLP
Firm registration number: 01 2754N/ N500016

Purfyies

Muirpbership Moo 038507 -
o T
wg st 2, 2020

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of

Dne®7 Comminleations Lzml
1) ’g 5 o
! /

DINNo 00466521
Plxce: Noida
Date: Muy 22, 2020

i

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2020

and Maraging Director

Commgimiy Secretary
Place: Noida
Dale: May 22, 2020
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL.2000PL.C108985

Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended March 31, 2020

{Amounts in INR Urores, unless otherwise stated)

) Equity Share Capital

Equity shares of INF each issued, subscribed and fully paid No, of Shares Amount

At April 1, 2018 5,49,98,632 5532
Shares issued during the year# 20,94,650 205
Mes issued during the year - ESOP 1,62.847 016
Al March 31, 2019* 5.72,56,129 57.53
Shares issued during the year# 28,03,511 277
Shares issued during the year - ESOP 1,28.015 013
At March 31, 2020 6,01,87,655 60.43

= Net of treasury shuras 247,370 (March 31, 2019: 277,737) il il cout thicugh employee welfare trust
# Shares issued during the year includes 30,367 (March 31, 2019: 48,902) shares issued out of treaswy shares

b Instruments entirely equity in nature
Obligation Lo issue fixed number of shares Amount
AL April 1, 2018 173.63
Changes during the year (Refer note | L(a)} (173 63)
At March 31, 2019 _ =
Changes during the vear
AL March 31, 2020 - =
©) Other Equity _ o =
Particulars Share appli:a.tion Reserves and Surplus Other reserves Total Other
money pending [ Equit
allotment Security Premium Retained earnings ESOP Reserve FVTOCI quity
As at April 1, 2018 - _ 0.05 311.324.23 (4,101.84)] 127,70 {4.54) 7, 46.60
|.uxes for the year (3,959.64) (3,050 64)
Other Comprelieizve ncome = : | (1.43) - 129 (0. 14)
Total comprehensive income - (3,961.07) - 1.29 (3,954, T8}
Exercise of share options (005) - - (0.05)
Adjustiment on forfeiture of ESOP (Refer note 24) 344 (3449) .
Al on flation of un d ESOP (Refer note 24) 19.07 (19.07)
Shinte based payment expenses (Refer note 24) - - 86.06 86.06
Asionnt seceived on issue of shares 2,187.41 2,187.41
Shares issued for consideration other than cash 29475 29475
Amount utilised for share issue expenses (239) . (2.39)
Share based pay for employees of group (Refer note 24) : 2590 2590
Asonnt transferred to secunty premium on exercise of optins - = 1869 - (18.69) L .
As at March 31, 2019 13,822.69 (8,040.40) 198.46 2.25) 3,976,.50
Loss for the year . (2,83318) - (2,833 15)
Other Comprehensive income o (0.70) 020 (11 50)
Tolal comprehensive income - {2,833.88) . 0.20 (2.831.68)
Adjustment on forfeiture of ESOP (Refer note 24) 0.19 (019 . .
Adj on cancellation of d ESOP (Refer note 24) 2843 (28 43)
Amount transfered to security premium on exercise of options 3592 . (3592)
Share based payment expenses (Refer note 24) 12353 12353
Share bared pay for employees of group p (Refer note 24) 4556 4556
Share application money pending allotment - . -
Amount received on issue of shares 5,051 15 5,051 15
Amount utilised for share issue expenses (14 04) - - (14.04)
Othier adjustments —— 054 - (0 54)
| As at March 31, 2020 . 18,895.72 (10.845.12) 303.01 (2.59) #,351.02 |
* Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company -
The above Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in with the panying notes

This is the Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number: 011 2754/ N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Pariner

MombergJip No: 058507

Pliice 2::;_;(31_) - mm

For and on behalf of Board of Directors of
One97 Communications Limited

DIN No 00466521
Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2020

\’S\Gzrg

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2020

iifd Kumar Singhania
Company Secretary
Place: Noida

Date: May 22, 2020




Standalone Financial Statements

One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U722060DL2000PLC108985

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Cash flow from operating activities:
Loss before tax from
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations
Adjustments for
Depreciation and amortization expense
Interest income
Interest Income on unwinding of discount - financial assets ineasured at amortized cost
Interest on borrowing at amortized cost
Interest and finance charges on lease liabilities
Trade receivables / advance written off
Provision for doubtful advances and unbilled receivables
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Fair value loss on Financials assets through FVTPL
Gain on sale of gaming business/ wallet business
Liabilities / Provision no longer required written back
Provision for impairment of investments in associates and subsidiaries
Property, plant and equipment and intangibles written ofl
Rent equalisation reserve
Non-cash employee share based payment expenses
Provision for employee incentive
Fair value gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL (net)
(Gain) / Loss on disposal on sale of investments in associates
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment and intangibles

Operating loss before working capital changes

Working capital adjustments:
Increase/(decrease) in trade payables
Increase/(decrease) in provisions
Increase /(decrease) in other current liabilities and contract liabilities
Increase/(decrease) in other financial liabilities
(Increase)/d in trade receivable:
(Increase)/decrease in other financial assets
(Increase)/decrease in other current and non current assets
(Increase)/decrease in loans

Cash used in operations
Income taxes paid (net off refunds)

Net cash (outflow) from operating activities (A)

Cash flow from investing activities:

Purchase of property, plant and equipment including intangible assets, work in progress and

capital advances
Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment

Proceeds from sale of gaming business
Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months)

Investment in bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months)

Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 12 months)

Maturity of bank deposits (having original maturity of more than 3 months but less than 12 months)

Proceeds from repayment of inter corporate loans

Inter corporate loans given

Proceeds from sale of non current investments
Investments in subsidiaries and associates

Proceeds from sale of current investments

Payment for purchase of current investments

[nterest received

Net cash inflow / (outflow) from Investing activities (B)
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For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
(2,833.13) (3,954.21)
(5.31)
19 143.18 7581
16 64.13) (66.90)
16 (67 34) (45.47)
18 2491 15.00
18 2040 -
20 1.96 .
20 236 1227
20 3348 12,69
20 88 08 -
2] . (4220)
16 (512) (591)
21 31168 13322
20 003 0.06
031
17 123 52 86 06
4672 (9.85)
16 (8999) (216.18)
10.51
16 I R L) - (0.82)
(2,253.98) (4,011.43)
(94.78) 259.61
1686 914
348 22 458 05
(496 56) 440 03
(120.72) 249.86
269,48 (690.05)
151.90 (803 43)
(45.65) (8718)
(2,225.23) (4,175.40)
(25.44) (179.64)
T (2250.67) -  (4355.04)
(169 19) (158 04)
110 475
32 3391
(1,430 95) (13819)
1177 (6272)
98 50 17481
1798 81 43
244 61 -
(7 00) (272 43)
0.67 E
(24277) (27255)
7,244 53 5,547 47
(7,960 31) (3,296 34)
4] 96 6674
(2,172.64) 1,708.84
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Standalone Financial Statements
0One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Standalone Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Notes For the year ended For the year ended
March 31,2020 March 31,2019
Cash flow from financing activities:
Proceeds from issue of shares 5,054.05 2,189 29
Share issue expenses (14.04) (239)
Repayment of loan (60.61) .
Interest paid (4507) (14.09)
Proceeds from loan 13352 .
Payment of deferred payment liabilities . (723)
Principal elements of lease payments (26.85)
Net cash inflow / (outflow) from financing activities (C ) 5,04 1.00 — 2,165.58
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 617.70 (480.62)
Cash and cash equivalent at the beginning of the period L (460 28) 2034
Cash and cash equivalent at the end of the period 157.42 (460.28)
Cash and cash equi\.ralents as per above comprises of following March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
- Cash and cheque on hand 337 003
Balance with banks
- On current accounts 27273 23519
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months 950
Cash and cash equivalents 10(a) 285.60 235.22
~ Bank overdraft 13(a) a (695 50)
- Working capital demand loan 13(a) (128.18) -
157.42 (460.28)

Total cash and cash equivalents

= Amount below r<;unding off nonmns adopted by the company

For non-cash investment and financing activities refer note 5, 11(a) and 13(a), respectively

The above Standalone Statement of Cash Flow should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes

This is the Standalone Statement of Cash Flow referred to in our report of even date

For Price Waterhouse Chartered Accountants LLP
Firm registration number 012754N/ N500016

Amitesh Dutta

Partner

Memberahip No (158507
Place & AL o (ot A

[rate /Z)u?u—gt -2, 20 2D

For and on behall of Board of Directors of
One97 Communications Limited

and Managing Director
DIN No 00466521

Place: Noida

Date: May 22, 2020

o

Chief Financial Officer
Place: Noida
Date: May 22, 2020

ind Kumar Singhania
Compiny Secretary

Place: Noida

Date: May 22, 2020



One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PL.C108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

1. Corporate information

One97 Communications Limited (“the Company”) is a public company domiciled in India and is incorporated under the provisions
of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”). The registered office of the Company is located at 1st Floor, Devika Tower, Nehru Place,
New Delhi - 110019. The principal place of business of the Company is in India.

The Company is in the business of providing payment services primarily as payment facilitator, aggregator for digital products,
providing voice and messaging platforms to the telecom operators and enterprise customers and other businesses.

These standalone financial statements were authorised for issue in accordance with a resolution of the Board of Directors on May
22, 2020.

2. Significant accounting policies

2.1 Basis of preparation

These standalone financial statements (“Financial Statements™) of the Company have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standard (‘Ind AS’) notified under Section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 as amended from time to time.

The financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except for certain financial assets and liabilities measured at
fair value (refer accounting policy on financial instruments).

The Company has applied the following standards and amendments for the first time for period commencing from April 1, 2019:
e IND AS 116, Leases
e Long term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures — Amendments to IND AS 28, Investments in Associates and Joint
ventures
»  Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments — Appendix C to IND AS 12, Income Taxes
e  Plan Amendments, Curtailment or Settlement - Amendments to IND AS 19, Employee Benefits
* Amendments to IND AS 103, Business Combinations and IND AS 111, Joint Arrangements
» Amendments to IND AS 12, Income Taxes

The Company has changed its accounting policies as a result of adoption of IND AS 116 (refer note 2.2p). The other amendments
listed above did not have any impacts on amounts recognised in prior periods and are not expected to significantly affect the current
periods.

All the amounts included in the financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees (‘Rupees’ or ‘Rs.” or ‘INR’) and are rounded to
the nearest crores up to two decimal places, except per share data and unless stated otherwise.
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One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL.2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Impact of COVID-19

Covid-19 continues to spread across globe and India. This has impact on all local and global economic activities. Government of
India has taken series of measures to contain spread of virus and limit economic impact on corporates and individuals.

The Company has considered the possible effects that may result from Covid-19, on the carrying amount of the receivables,
investments, goodwill etc. While making the assessment the Company has taken cognizance of internal and external information up
to the date of approval of Financial Statements. The Company based on current estimates expects the carrying amount of the above
assets will be recovered.

Management believes that it has taken into account all the possible impact of known events arising from COVID-19 pandemic in the
preparation of standalone financial statements. However, the impact assessment of COVID-19 is a continuing process given the
uncertainties associated with its nature and duration. The Company will continue to monitor any material changes to the future
economic conditions.

2.2 Summary of significant accounting policies

a. Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current / non-current classification.

An asset is classified as current when it is expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle, held
primarily for the purpose of trading, expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or cash or cash
equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period.
All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is classified as current when it is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose of
trading, it is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period, or there is no unconditional right to defer the
settlement of the liability for at least twelve months after the reporting period. The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-
current.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities, are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.

The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents.
The Company has identified twelve months as its operating cycle.

b. Foreign currencies
Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of the Company are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in
which it operates i.e. the “functional currency”. The Company’s financial statements are presented in INR, which is also the
Company’s functional currency.

Transactions and balances

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the Company’s functional currency at exchange rates prevailing at the
date the transaction first qualifies for recognition.




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at
the reporting date. Exchange differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are recognised in profit or loss.
Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
dates of the initial transactions.

Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair
value is determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair value is treated in line with the
recognition of the gain or loss on the change in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on items whose fair value gain or
loss is recognised in other comprehensive income (“OCI”) or statement of profit and loss, are also recognised in OCI or statement of
profit and loss, respectively).

¢. Fair value measurement

The Company measures certain financial instruments (e.g. investments) at fair value at each balance sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date.

The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liabilities takes place
either in the principal market for the asset or liability or in absence of principal market, in the most advantageous market for the
asset or liability.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by
using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the asset in its highest and best
use.

The Company uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to
measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised within the fair value
hierarchy, described as follows, based on the jowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1- Quoted (Unadjusted) marked prices in the active markets for identical assets or liabilities

Level 2- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is directly or
indirectly observable

Level 3- Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement is unobservable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines whether
transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

At each reporting date, the management analyses the movements in the values of assets and liabilities which are required to be re-
measured or re-assessed as per the Company’s accounting policies. For this analysis, the management or its expert verifies the major
inputs applied in the latest valuation by agreeing the information in the valuation computation to contracts and other relevant
documents.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis of the nature,
characteristics and risks of the asset or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as explained above.




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72260DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

d. Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured based on the consideration specified in a contract with a customer net of variable consideration e.g. discounts,
volume rebates, any payments made to a customer (unless the payment is for a distinct good or service received from the customer)
and excludes amounts collected on behalf of third parties. The Company recognises revenue when it transfers control over a product
or service to a customer. Revenue is only recognised to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

The Company provides incentives to its users in various forms including cashbacks. Incentives which are consideration payable to
the customer that are not in exchange for a distinct good or service are generally recognized as a reduction of revenue at the later of
when revenue is recognized or when the Company pays or promises to pay the incentive.

Where the Company acts as an agent for selling goods or services, only the commission income is included within revenue. The
specific revenue recognition criteria described below must also be met before revenue is recognized. Typically, the Company has a
right to payment before or at the point that services are delivered. Cash received before the services are delivered is recognised as a
contract liability. The amount of consideration does not contain a significant financing component as payment terms are less than
one year.

Sale of services

Revenue from services is recognized when the control in services is transferred as per the terms of the agreement with customer i.e.
as and when services are rendered. Revenues are disclosed net of the Goods and Service tax charged on such services. In terms of
the contract, excess of revenue over the billed at the year-end is carried in the balance sheet as unbilled revenue under other
financial assets where the amount is recoverable from the customer without any future performance obligation. Cash received before
the services are delivered is recognised as a contract liability.

Commission

The Company facilitates recharge of talk time, bill payments and availability of bus tickets and earns commission for the respective
services. Commission income is recognized when the control in services is transferred to the customer when the services have been
provided by the Company.

Service fees from merchants

The Company eamns service fee from merchants and recognizes such revenue when the control in services have been transferred by
the Company i.e. as and when services have been provided by the Company. Such service fee is generally determined as a
percentage of transaction value executed by the merchants. Amount received by the Company pending settlement are disclosed as
payable to the merchants under contract liabilities.

Other operating revenue

Where the Company is contractually entitled to receive claims/compensation in case of non-discharge of obligations by customers,
such claims/compensations are measured at amount receivable from such customers and are recognised as other operating revenue
when there is a reasonable certainty that the Company will be able to realize the said amounts.

Interest income

For all debt instruments measured either at amortised cost or at fair value through other comprehensive income, interest income is
recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR). EIR is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts
over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period, where appropriate, to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset or to the amortised cost of a financial liability. When calculating the effective interest rate, the Company estimates the
expected cash flows by considering all the contractual terms of the financial instrument but does not consider the expected credit
losses. Interest income is included in finance income in the statement of profit and loss.
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

e. Taxes

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted or substantively enacted, at the
reporting date in the countries where the Company operates and generates taxable income.

Current income tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive
income or in equity. Current tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in the tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax regulations
are subject to interpretation and establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method on temporary differences between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts for financial reporting purposes at the reporting date.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary differences, except:

When the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, the carry forward of unused tax credits and any unused
tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carry forward of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be utilised. The carrying
amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are re-
assessed at each reporting date and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will allow the
deferred tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the year when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside statement of profit and loss is recognised either in other comprehensive income or
in equity. Deferred tax items are recognised in correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and the deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

Minimum alternate tax

Credit of MAT is recognised as deferred tax asset only when it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
credit can be utilised. In the year in which the MAT credit becomes eligible to be recognised as an asset, the said asset is created by
way of a credit to the statement of profit and loss account. The Company reviews the same at each balance sheet date and writes
down the carrying amount of MAT credit entitlement to the extent it is no longer probable that the Company will pay normal income
tax during the specified period.




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000P1L.C108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Taxes paid on acquisition of assets or on incurring expenses

Expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of GST paid, except:

»  When the tax incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from the taxation authority, in which case, the tax
paid is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or disclosed separately in statement of profit and loss, as
applicable, or

e When receivables and payables are stated with the amount of tax included

The net amount of tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included as part of other current/ non- current assets
or other current liabilities in the balance sheet.

f. Non-current assets held for sale and discontinued operations

The Company classifies non-current assets and disposal groups as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered
principally through a sale rather than through continuing use. Actions required to complete the sale should indicate that it is unlikely
that significant changes to the sale will be made or that the decision to sell will be withdrawn. Management must be committed to
the sale expected within one year from the date of classification.

For these purposes, sale transactions include exchanges of non-current assets for other non-current assets when the exchange has
commercial substance. The criteria for held for sale classification is regarded met only when the assets or disposal group is available
for immediate sale in its present condition, subject only to terms that are usual and customary for sales of such assets (or disposal
groups), its sale is highly probable; and it will genuinely be sold, not abandoned. The Company treats sale of the asset or disposal
group to be highly probable when:

o  The appropriate level of management is committed to a plan to sell the asset (or disposal group),

e  An active programme to locate a buyer and complete the plan has been initiated (if applicable),

»  The asset (or disposal group) is being actively marketed for sale at a price that is reasonable in relation to its current fair value,

e The sale is expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of classification , and

e Actions required to complete the plan indicate that it is unlikely that significant changes to the plan will be made or that the
plan will be withdrawn.

Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and the fair value less costs

to sell. Assets and liabilities classified as held for sale are presented separately in the Balance Sheet.

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

A disposal group qualifies as discontinued operation if it is a component of an entity that either has been disposed of, or is classified
as held for sale, and:

« Represents a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations or

o Is part of a single co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line of business or geographical area of operations.

Discontinued operations are excluded from the results of continuing operations and are presented as a single amount as profit or loss
after tax from discontinued operations in the statement of profit and loss.

Additional disclosures are provided in Note 32. All notes to the financial statements mainly include amounts for continuing

operations, unless otherwise mentioned.

g. Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any accumulated impairment, if any. Property.
plant and equipment is depreciated on a written down value basis to its residual value over its estimated useful life.

Costs directly attributable to acquisition are capitalized until the property, plant and equipment are ready for use, as intended by the
management.
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One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Subsequent costs are capitalised on the carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when future
economic benefits associated with the item are probable to flow to the Company and cost of the item can be measured reliably.
When significant parts of property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Company depreciates them
separately based on their specific useful lives. The carrying amount of any component accounted for as a separate asset is
derecognised when replaced. All repair and maintenance are charged to statement of profit and loss during the reporting period in
which they are incurred.

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each balance sheet date is classified as
capital advances under the non-current assets and the cost of assets not ready to use before such date are disclosed under ‘Capital
work in progress’.

The gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equipment is determined as the difference
between the sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in the statement of profit and loss on the date of
disposal or retirement.

Depreciation is provided using the written down value method and charged to statement of profit and loss, unless such expenditure
forms part of carrying value of another asset, as per the rates prescribed under schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, given
below:

Assets _ Rate of Depreciaﬁon o
(per annum)
Servers and networking equipment (Computers) 39.30%
Laptops and desktops (Computers) 63.16%
Office equipment 45.07%
Furniture and fittings 25.89%
Plant & Machinery 45.07%
Vehicles 31.23%

Leasehold improvements are depreciated over lower of the period of the lease and useful life.
Leasehold land is depreciated over the period of the lease.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation of property, plant and equipment are reviewed at each financial year
end and adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

h. Intangible assets

Separately acquired intangible assets, such as software are measured initially at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible assets
are carried at cost less accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets,
excluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and expenditure is reflected in the statement of profit and loss in the
year in which the expenditure is incurred. Intangible assets with finite useful lives are carried at cost and are amortised on a written
down value basis over their estimated useful lives and charged to statement of profit and loss.

Software and licenses acquired are amortized at the rate of 40% per annum on written down value method.

The amortization period and the amortization method are reviewed at least at each financial year end. Changes in the expected
useful life or the expected pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to modify the
amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on
intangible assets is recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another
asset.

Gains or losses arising from de-recognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between the net-disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognized in the statement of profit and loss when the asset is-dereCognized.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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Research and development costs

Research costs are expensed as incurred. Development expenditure incurred on an individual project is recognized as an intangible
asset when the Company can demonstrate all the following:

»  The technical feasibility of completing the intangible asset so that it will be available for use or sale

s Its intention to complete the asset

» Its ability to use or sell the asset

»  How the asset will generate future economic benefits

»  The availability of adequate resources to complete the development and to use or sell the asset

»  The ability to measure reliably the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during development.

Following the initial recognition of the development expenditure as an asset, the cost model is applied requiring the asset to be
carried at cost less any accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment losses. Amortization of the asset begins when
development is complete and the asset is available for use. It is amortized on a straight line basis over the period of expected future
benefit from the related project, i.e., the estimated useful life of one to five years. Amortization is recognized in the statement of
profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying value of another asset. During the period of development, the asset is
tested for impairment annually.

i. Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes a substantial
period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalised as part of the cost of the asset. All other borrowing costs are
expensed in the period in the statement of profit and loss in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs
that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

j- Impairment of non-financial assets

For all non-financial assets, the Company assesses whether there are indicators of impairment. If such an indicator exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss, if any. Where the asset does not
generate cash flows that are independent from other assets, the Company estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The recoverable amount for an asset or CGU is the higher of its value in use and fair value less costs of disposal. If the recoverable
amount of an asset or CGU is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the asset or CGU is considered impaired and the
carrying amount of the asset or CGU is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in the
statement of profit and loss.

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows of the asset or CGU are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining
fair value less costs of disposal, recent market transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an
appropriate valuation model is used. These calculations are corroborated by valuation multiples, quoted share prices for publicly
traded companies or other available fair value indicators.

The Company bases its impairment calculation on detailed budgets and forecast calculations. These budgets and forecast
calculations generally cover a period of five years. For longer periods, a long-term growth rate is calculated and applied to project
future cash flows after the fifth year. To estimate cash flow projections beyond periods covered by the most recent
budgets/forecasts, the Company extrapolates cash flow projections in the budget using a steady or declining growth rate for
subsequent years, unless an increasing rate can be justified. In any case, this growth rate does not exceed the long-term average
growth rate for the products, industries, or country or countries in which the entity operates, or for the market in which the asset is
used.

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the Company estimates the asset’s or CGU s recoverable amount.
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

A previously recognised impairment loss is reversed only if there has been a change in the assumptions used to determine the asset’s
or CGU’s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The reversal is limited so that the carrying amount of
the asset does not exceed its recoverable amount, nor exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of
depreciation, had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior years. Such reversal is recognised in the statement of
profit or loss.

k. Provisions and contingencies
Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event, it is
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. When the Company expects some or all of a provision to be reimbursed, the
reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset, but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss net of any reimbursement.

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects, when
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a finance cost.

Contingencies

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not
recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. A contingent liability also
arises in extremely rare cases where there is a liability that cannot be recognized because it cannot be measured reliably. The
Company does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.

l. Retirement and other employee benefits

For defined benefit plans (gratuity), the liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet is the present value of the defined benefit
obligation at the end of the reporting period less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is calculated by an
independent actuary using the projected unit credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated future cash outflows by reference to
market yields at the end of the reporting period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligation.

The net interest cost is calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the defined benefit obligation and the fair value
of plan assets. This cost is included in employee benefit expense in the statement of profit and loss.

Re-measurement gains and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognised in the
period in which they occur, directly in other comprehensive income. They are included in retained eamnings in the statement of
changes in equity and in the balance sheet. Re-measurements are not reclassified to profit or loss in the subsequent periods.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan amendments or curtailments are recognised
immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

The Company’s contributions to defined contribution plans (provident fund) are recognized in profit or loss when the employee
renders related service. The Company has no further obligations under these plans beyond its periodic contributions.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

The Company provides for liability at year end on account of un-availed earned leave as per actuarial valuation using projected unit
credit method.

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be settled wholly within 12 months after the
end of the period in which the employees render the related service are recognised in respect of employees' services up to the end of
the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented
as employee benefit payable under other financial liabilities in the balance sheet.

m. Share-based payments
i) Equity-settled transactions

Employees (including senior executives) of the Company receive remuneration in the form of share-based payments, whereby
employees render services as consideration for equity instruments (equity-settled transactions).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is determined by the fair value at the date when the grant is made using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in Employee Stock Option Plan (ESOP) reserves in equity, over the
period in which the performance and/or service conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at each reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period
has expired and the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit
and loss expense or credit for a period represents the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of
that period and is recognised in employee benefits expense.

Service and non-market performance conditions are not taken into account when determining the grant date fair value of awards, but
the likelihood of the conditions being met is assessed as part of the Company’s best estimate of the number of equity instruments
that will ultimately vest.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met.

When the terms of an equity-settled award are modified, the minimum expense recognised is the expense had the terms not been
modified, if the original terms of the award are met. An additional expense is recognised for any modification that increases the total
fair value of the share-based payment transaction, or is otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at the date of modification.
Where an award is cancelled by the entity or by the counterparty, any remaining element of the fair value of the award is expensed
immediately through profit or loss.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected as additional share dilution in the computation of dituted earnings per share.

ii) Cash-settled transactions

For awards classified as cash settled share based transactions, the goods or services acquired are measured and the liability incurred,
at the fair value of liability. Until the liability is settled, the fair value of the liability is re-measured at the end of each reporting
period and at the date of settlement, with any changes in fair value recognised in statement of profit and loss for the period.

The cost of cash-settled transactions is determined by the fair value of equity instruments at each reporting date using an appropriate
valuation model.

That cost is recognised, together with a corresponding increase in liability, over the period in which the performance and/or service
conditions are fulfilled in employee benefits expense. The cumulative expense recognised for cash-settled transactions at each
reporting date until the vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting period has expired and the Company’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately vest. The statement of profit and loss expense or credit for a period represents
the movement in cumulative expense recognised as at the beginning and end of that period and is recognised in employee benefits
expense.
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One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

No expense is recognised for awards that do not ultimately vest because non-market performance and/or service conditions have not
been met.

The Company has set up an Employee Welfare Trust (EWT) for administering certain types of share-based payment arrangements
including awards given to employees of the outside group companies as well for awards of options of other companies given to its
employees. The Company uses EWT as a vehicle for distributing shares under the ESOP schemes. The EWT holds shares of the
Company, for giving shares to employees. The Company treats EWT as its extension and shares of the Company held by EWT are
treated as treasury shares. Other assets held by EWT are consolidated on a line-by-line basis with Company’s financial statements.
Shares of other companies held by EWT for distribution to its employees are separately disclosed under investments.

n. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity instrument of
another entity.

Financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not recorded at fair value through profit
or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:
e Debt instruments at amortized cost
= Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
® Debt instruments, derivatives and equity instruments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
. Equity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)
Debt instruments at amortised cost

A “debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:
a) The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows, and

b) Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
(SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included in finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and other receivables and is most relevant to the
Company.

Debt instrument at FVTOCI

A “debt instrument’ is classified as at the FVTOCI if both of the following criteria are met:
a)  The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets,

and
b) The asset’s contractual cash flows represent SPPI.

Debt instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value. Fair

value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit and loss. On derécognition of the asset,
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest
earned whilst holding FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Debt instrument at FVTPL

FVTPL is a residual category for debt instruments. Any debt instrument, which does not meet the criteria for categorization as at
amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a debt instrument, which otherwise meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at
FVTPL. However, such election is allowed only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency
(referred to as ‘accounting mismatch’).

Debt instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind AS 109 are measured at fair value. The Company may make an irrevocable election to
present in other comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such election on an instrument-
by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding
dividends, are recognized in the OCI. There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to statement of profit or loss, even on sale of
investment. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all changes recognized in the statement of
profit and loss.

Equity investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures are measured at cost. The investments are reviewed at each
reporting date to determine whether there is any indication of impairment considering the provisions of Ind AS 36 ‘Impairment of
Assets’. If any such indication exists, policy for impairment of non-financial assets is followed.

Derecognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily
derecognised (i.e. removed from the Company’s balance sheet) when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
° The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the
received cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a) the
Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has neither transferred nor
retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it
evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all of the risks and rewards of the asset, nor transferred control of the asset, the Company continues to recognise the
transferred asset to the extent of the Company’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated
liability. The transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and recognition of
impairment loss on financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g., loans, debt securities,
deposits, trade receivables and bank balance.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on trade receivables. The application of
simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance
based on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company determines that whether there has been
a significant increase in the credit risk since initial recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month expected
credit loss (ECL) is used to provide for impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If,
in a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a significant increase in credit risk
since initial recognition, then the entity reverts to recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL are the expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive (i.e., all cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR.

The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision
matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward-
looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-looking
estimates are analyzed.

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/ expense in the statement of
profit and loss. This amount is reflected under the head other expenses in the statement of profit and loss. For the financial assets
measured as at amortised cost, ECL is presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the measurement of those assets in the
balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and
borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly
attributable transaction costs.

The Company’s financial liabilities include lease liabilities, trade and other payables, including bank overdrafts and other
borrowings.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification as described below:
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Loans and borrowings

After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the EIR amortisation
process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

Derecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When an existing
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.
Embedded derivatives

An embedded derivative is a component of a hybrid (combined) instrument that also includes a non-derivative host contract - with
the effect that some of the cash flows of the combined instrument vary in a way similar to a stand-alone derivative. An embedded
derivative causes some or all of the cash flows that otherwise would be required by the contract to be modified according to a
specified interest rate, financia! instrument price, commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of prices or rates, credit rating or
credit index, or other variable, provided in the case of a non-financial variable that the variable is not specific to a party to the
contract. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies the cash flows
that would otherwise be required or a reclassification of a financial asset out of the fair value through profit or loss.

If the hybrid contract contains a host that is a financial asset within the scope of Ind AS 109, the Company does not separate
embedded derivatives. Rather, it applies the classification requirements contained in Ind AS 109 to the entire hybrid contract.
Derivatives embedded in all other host contracts are accounted for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if their
economic characteristics and risks are not closely related to those of the host contracts and the host contracts are not held for trading
or designated at fair value though profit or loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with changes in fair value
recognized in profit or loss, unless designated as effective hedging instruments.

Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and
settle the liabilities simultaneously.

o. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits, as defined above,
net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash management.

p. Leases

Accounting policy applied till March 31, 2019

The determination of whether an arrangement is (or contains) a lease is based on the substance of the arrangement at the inception
of the lease. The arrangement is, or contains, a lease if fulfilment of the arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or
assets and the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset or assets, even if that right is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
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Company as a lessee

A lease that transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership to the Company is classified as a finance lease.
All other leases are classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to statement of profit and loss
on a straight-line basis over the period of the lease unless the payments are structured to increase in line with expected general
inflation to compensate for the lessor’s expected inflationary cost increases.

Finance leases are capitalised at the commencement of the lease at the inception date fair value of the leased property or, if lower, at
the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between finance charges and reduction of the
lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the liability. Finance charges are recognised in
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss.

A leased asset is depreciated over the useful life of the asset. However, if there is no reasonable certainty that the Company will
obtain ownership by the end of the lease term, the asset is depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset and
the lease term.

Change in Accounting Policy

The Company has adopted Ind AS 116 "Leases" from April 1, 2019, which resulted in changes in accounting policies in the
standalone financial statements.

Transition

Effective April 1, 2019, the Company adopted Ind AS 116 “Leases™ and applied the standard to all lease contracts existing on
April 1,2019 using the modified retrospective method by recognizing a lease liability at the date of initial application at the present
value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate and recognizing a right-of-use
asset at an amount equal to the lease liability, adjusted by the amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that
lease recognised in the balance sheet immediately before the date of initial application. Comparatives as at and for the year ended
March 31, 2019 have not been retrospéctively adjusted and therefore will continue to be reported under the accounting policies
included as part of standalone financial statements for year ended March 31, 2019.

On transition, the adoption of the new standard resulted in recognition of 'Right of Use' asset of 271.65 and a lease liability of
218.37. There has been no impact on the retained earnings due to application of the standard. The effect of this adoption has
resulted in decrease in profit before tax by INR 3.36, profit after tax by INR 3.36, basic earnings per share by INR 0.60 per
share and diluted earnings per share by INR 0.60 per share. Ind AS 116 will result in an increase in cash inflows from
operating activities and an increase in cash outflows from financing activities on account of lease payments.

The following is the summary of practical expedients elected on initial application:

1. Applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases of similar assets in similar economic environment with a similar
end date. '

2. Applied the exemption not to recognize right-of-use assets and liabilities for leases with less than 12 months of lease
term on the date of initial application.

3. Applied the practical expedient not to separate non-lease components from lease components, and instead account for
each lease component and any associated non-lease components as a single lease component.

4. Excluded the initial direct costs from the measurement of the right-of-use asset at the date of initial application.

5. Applied the practical expedient to grandfather the assessment of which transactions are leases. Accordingly, Ind AS
116 is applied only to contracts that were previously identified as leases under Ind AS 17.
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"The difference between the operating lease commitments recorded as of March 31, 2019 under Ind AS 17 disclosed under
Note 28 of the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2019 and the value of the lease liability
recognised as of April 1, 2019 is primarily on account of consideration of extension and termination options reasonably certain
to be exercised, and exclusion of liability pertaining to leases for which short term exemption is availed by the Company in
measuring the lease liability in accordance with Ind AS 116. "

The weighted average incremental borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities as at April 1, 2019 is 10% based on the remaining
lease term.

Accounting policy applied from April 1, 2019

The Company as a lessee

The Company’s lease asset classes primarily consist of leases for land and office premises. The Company assesses whether a
contract contains a lease, at inception of a contract. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the right to control
the use of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys the right
to control the use of an identified asset, the Company assesses whether: (i) the contact involves the use of an identified asset (ii)
the Company has substantially all of the economic benefits from use of the asset through the period of the lease and (iii) the
Company has the right to direct the use of the asset.

At the date of commencement of the lease, the Company recognizes a right-of-use asset (“ROU”) and a corresponding lease
liability for all lease arrangements in which it is a lessee, except for leases with a term of twelve months or less (short-term
leases) and low value leases. For these short-term and low value leases, the Company recognizes the lease payments as an
operating expense on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease.

Certain lease arrangements includes the options to extend or terminate the lease before the end of the lease term. ROU assets
and lease liabilities includes these options when it is reasonably certain that they will be exercised.

The right-of-use assets are initially recognized at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the lease liability adjusted for any
lease payments made at or prior to the commencement date of the lease plus any initial direct costs less any lease incentives.
They are subsequently measured at cost less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, if any.

Right-of-use assets are depreciated from the commencement date on a straight-line basis over the shorter of the lease term and
useful life of the underlying asset. Right of use assets are evaluated for recoverability whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be recoverable. For the purpose of impairment testing, the
recoverable amount (i.e. the higher of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is determined on an individual asset
basis unless the asset does not generate cash flows that are largely independent of those from other assets. In such cases, the
recoverable amount is determined for the Cash Generating Unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

The lease liability is initially measured at amortized cost at the present value of the future lease payments. The lease payments are
discounted using the interest rate implicit in the lease or, if not readily determinable, using the incremental borrowing rates in the
country of domicile of these leases. Lease liabilities are remeasured with a corresponding adjustment to the related right of use
asset if the Company changes its assessment if whether it will exercise an extension or a termination option.

Lease liability and ROU asset have been separately presented in the standalone balance sheet and lease payments have been
classified as financing cash flows.
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000P1.C108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

q. Earnings/ (loss) per share (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of Equity shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/(loss) attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of
Equity shares outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of Equity shares that would be issued on conversion of
all the dilutive potential Equity shares into Equity shares.

r. Treasury shares

Own equity instruments that are reacquired (treasury shares) are recognised at cost and deducted from equity. No gain or loss is
recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or cancellation of the Company’s own equity instruments. Any difference
between the carrying amount and the consideration, if reissued, is recognised in other reserve.

s. Segment reporting

Identification of segments

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision maker
(CODM). Only those business activities are identified as operating segment for which the operating results are regularly reviewed
by the CODM to make decisions about resource allocation and performance measurement.

Segment accounting policies

The Company prepares its segment information in conformity with the accounting policies adopted for preparing and presenting the
financial statements of the Company as a whole.

t. Use of estimates

The Company is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting
period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. The Company bases its estimates on historical experience and on various
other assumptions that are believed to be reasonable, the results of which form the basis for making judgements about carrying
values of assets and liabilities.

u. Exceptional Items

On certain occasions, the size, type or incidence of an item of income or expense, pertaining to the ordinary activities of the
Company is such that its disclosure improves the understanding of the performance of the Company. Such income or expense is
classified as an exceptional item and accordingly disclosed in the financial statements. Significant impact on the financial statements
arising from impairment of investments in subsidiaries and associates, gain/ loss on disposal of subsidiaries and associates and

gain/ loss from slump sale of business lines are considered and reported as an exceptional items.

v. Contributed Equity

Equity shares are classified as equity.

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.




One9? Communlcntions Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC106985

Notes to the Standalone Financlal Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amaunns by IR 4, ey olherwise waied)
M), Property, plust wd vquipmvat
Partientars Computers Fumnftur :_"‘d Ladiatnid Vehicles Sffise Plant & Machinery Leasehold Land® Total
Giosy cuavying wmaoint =
As o April |, 2018 21355 601 2473 r47 1577 261.53
A 83.00 241 178 14.90 8508 18717
Lxiscanlitived Operation (Refer note 32) 028 005 033
Tisgeaeils 9.9 0.4 1031
Ax ut Mach 31, 2019 pLTA T 651 147 30.58 LX) 48818
Al April 1, 2019 G I0 L] 6.5 147 30.59 . as50n 438 16
Additime 50.01 014 oai 143 12563 177.61
Bieposaly 1332 114 117 15.63
| At for chasge w uegouing policy {Hifr gote 2.2p) _EL0R &5.0%
Ax st Murch 31, 2020 32099 Jan 2691 147 JLAS 125,63 = S50
Accumluted deprevistion { smortleutlin
As o april 1, 2018 90 44 257 595 052 786 107.34
For the year 5743 114 414 029 548 072 6920
Discontinued Operation (Refer note 32) 020 004 024
Dispasaly 6,71 013 : (KL - (£
| Axnt March 31, 2019 14096 358 L] ol 1324 072 16944
A Agril 1, 2009 105 3.58 (LA 081 1313 E 072 16844
Foc the yesr 7316 118 358 a20 410 3378 11597
Diepusals 11.54 033 073 1260
Adfjustinerd for change I occodnting policy (Fefor mite 2 2p) - w2 072
As ut March 51, 2020 0258 440 1567 Lot 16.65 3578 LY
Nt arvylng mmming
[An =t March 31, 2070 1 281 15,24 X0 .30 9185 2z |
IJ\: wt March 31, 2019 145.54 L] 1647 6,66 1.3 84.36 268.72 I

Netes:
(1) Capital work in progress

Capital work in progress mainly comprises of servers and network swilches.
(i) Leasehold land represent assets where Company is 8 lessee under finance lease. The lease lerm in respect of the leasehold |and acquired under finance lease is for ninety years {refer note 13)

(iii) Refer Lo note 28 for discl, of

'Punumllolhe-dnp(ionoﬂndAsll6,le|udmnmpruml.eduupmlimilmindnbal-md:«lulMIlel.ZO’lO.uennul(h) Refer to note 2 2p for

of property, plant and equipment

# Included in plant mnd machinery are assets given on lease  Gross Block INR 84 10, Accumulated depreciation INR 22 33, Net block INR 61.55

detail sbout the changes in accounting policy



One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

3 (b). Leases

This note provides information for leases where company is lessee

(i) Amounts recognised in Balance sheet

Particulars March 31, 2020 April 1, 2019*
Right-ol-use assets

Land 83.41 84.36
Office Premises 169.43 187.29
Total 252.84 271.65
Lease Liabilities

Current 3410 27.74
Non-Current 169.90 190.63
Total 204.00 218.37

* In the previous year, the company only recognised lease assets and lease liabilities in relation to lease that were classified as 'finance leases' under
Ind AS 17, Leases. The assets were presented in property, plant and equipment and the liabilities as part of the company's borrowings and other

financial liabilities. For adjustments recognised on adoption on Ind AS 116 on April 1, 2019 (refer note 2 2p)

Additions to right-of-use assets during the current financial year are INR 12 61

(ii) Amounts recognised in Statement of profit and loss

Particulars Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Depreciation charge of Right-of-use assets

Land 0.95

Office Premises# 30.47

Total 19 31.42 -
Particulars Notes March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Interest expense (included in finance cost) 18 2040

Expense relating to short-term lease (included in other expenses) 20 5.88

# This amount is including cross charge of INR 11 60 Net depreciation charge of Right-of-use assets in profit & loss is INR 19.82

The total cash outflow for leases for the year ended March 31, 2020 is INR 47 24




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes 10 the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounis In INR erores, unless oilirrwiie il ated)

4. Intungible wvety

Internally

Particulars Software Generated Total
Gross ¢ amount

As at April 1,2018 27.44 011 2755
Additions 1270 - 1270
| Disposals 134 - 134
Aw ut March 31, 2119 R ni gl
As at April 1, 2019 3880 011 3891
Additions 179 179
Disposals 5 -
As ot Merch 31, 2020 40.59 0.1 470
Accumulsted amortisilon

As ol April 1,2018 15.54 man 15.64
|Far the year 661 661
| Wil 016 0.76
An ul Mareli 31, 219 21.5% o 2149
Asut Apnl 1, 2019 2139 (AT A9
Far the yeur 739 739
Ly s - X

A st March 31, 2020 T (] 9,
Mt ¢ sl

As at Musich 31, 2020 131 [T} u.nﬂ
At March 31, 2019 1741 ool 1742

f O
[C)




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standal Fi fal Stat ts for the year ended March 31,2020
(A ts in INR Croves, unless otherwise stated)

§. Investment in subsidiaries - Non Current

Investment In equity instruments

Unquoted equity shares (Fully pald up)

One97 Communications Nigeria Limited

10,000,000 (March 31, 2019: 10,000,000) equity shares of NGN 1 each

One97 Communications FZ LLC
1,500 (March 31, 2019 : 1,500) equity shares of AED 1000 each

One97 Communications India Linuted
83,150,000 (March 31, 2019 83,150,000) equity shares of INR10 each

One97 Comumunications Singapore Private Limited
3,356,100 (March 31, 2019 : 3,356,100) equity shares of SGD 1 each

One97 USA Inc
532,000 (March 31, 2019 : 532,000) equity shares of USD 1 each

Paytm Financial Services Limited
2,000,000 (March 31, 2019 : 2,000,000) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Paytm Entertainment Limited
69,951,533 (March 31, 2019 : 61,010,000) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Paytm Money Limited

158,870,000 (March 31, 2019 78,870,000) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited (Refer note (vi) below)
44,337 (March 31, 2019 : 44,337) equity shares of INR 10 each

Orbgen Technologies Private Limited (Refer note (iv) below)
974,880 (March 31, 2019 974,880) equity shares of INR 10 each

Urja Money Private Limited
2,102,245 (March 31, 2019 1,637,912) equity shares of INR 10 each

Mobiquest Mobile Technologres Private Limited
115,035 (March 31, 2019 115,035) equity shares of INR 10 each

Little Internet Private Limited (Refer note (i) and (v) below)
13,477,263 (March 31, 2019 13,477,263) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

QorQL Private Limited (Refer note (iit) below)
25,60,938 (March 31, 2019 25,60,938) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Cube 26 software private limited (Refer note (vii) below)
Nil (March 31, 2019 586,300) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Paytm Services Private Limited (Formerly known as Balance Technology Private Limited)

15,000 (March 31, 2019 : 15,000) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Paytm Insurance Broking Private Limited (Refer note (i) below)
1,500,000 (March 31, 2019  Nil) equity shares of face value of INR 10 each

Total (A)

Unquoted compulsorily convertible preference shares (Fully paid up)
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited

35,710 (March 31, 2019 : 35,710) compulsory convertible preference shares of INR 10 each

Little Internet Private Limited (Refer note (1) and (v) below)

520,000 (March 31, 2019 520,000) C'ompulsorily Convertible Preference shares of face value of INR 10 each

Total (B)

Grand Total [A+B]

Aggregate amount of unquoted investments
Aggregate amount of Impalrment in the value of investment

(i) Subsidiary incorporated during (he year ended March 31, 2020

(ii) Net of provision for impainnent amounting to INR 271 27 (March 31, 2019 51 00) Also refer notes 11(a)(e) and 21

As at
March 31, 2020

As at
March 31, 2019

0.30 030
208 208
8315 8315
5293 3310
332 332
200 200
147 60 63 R}
166 04 80 35
89.69 11968
3152 58 81
2200 1400
804 804
205811
074
168 160

553

T 61588 676,11
217 217
1516

247 1733

61805 69344
618.05 693.44
422.34 128.67

(iii) Converted to investment in subsidiary during the year ended March 31, 2019 Net of provision for impairment amounting to INR 2 56 (March 31, 2019 2.56) Also refer note 21
(iv) Orbgen Technologies Private Linited was acquired during the previous year for consideration other Lhan cash, through swap of Company’s equity shares with the previous shareholders of Orbgen
Technologies Private Limited The amount of investment disclosed above is net of provision for impairment amounting to INR 118 51 (March 31, 2019 : 7511) Also refer note 21

(v) For acquisition of Little Internel Privale Limited in previous year (refer note 11(a)(e)), equty shares wete issued during the year for consideration other than cash. thiough swap ol Company’s

equity shares with the previous shareholders of Little Internet Private Limited

(vi) Net of provision for impairment amounting to [NR 30 (March 31, 2019: Nil) Also refer note 21

(vii) Investments sold during the year




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes 1o the dal Fi

for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Am

6. Investment in assoclates - Non Current

ts in INR Crores, unless otherwise s_‘t_alegl)

Ungquoted equity shares (Fully pald up)
Paytm Payments Bank Limited
156,003,900 (March 31, 2019 : 156,003,900) equity shares of INR 10 each

Paytm General Insurance Corporation Ltd
490,000 (March 31, 2019 : 49,000) equity shares of INR 10 each

Paytm Life insurance Corporation Limited
49,000 (March 31, 2019 : 49,000) equity shares of INR 10 each

Eatgood Technologies Private Limited*
2,879 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) equity shares of INR 10 each

Total (A)

Unquoted compulsorily convertible preference shares (Fully pald up)
Loginext Solutions Private Limited**
279,443 (March 31, 2019 : 279,443) Compulsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 10 each

Socomo Technologies Pnvate Limited**
28,800 (March 31, 2019 28,800) Compulsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 1 each

Infinity Transoft Solutions Private Lamufed*
3,618 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Campulsarily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 10 each

Eatgood Technologies Private Limited*
61,680 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Compulsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 100 each

Total (B)

Ungquoted compulsorily convertible debenture (Fully pald up)

QorQL Private Limuted #

Nil (March 31. 2019 : Nit) Compulsorily Convertible Debentures of INR 10 each

Total (C)

Grand Total [A+B+C]

Aggregate of

Aggregate amount of impairment in the value of investment

As at As al
March 31,2020 March 31.2019

156 00 156 00
049 005
005 005

187
15841 15610
1800

1000

4713
57.13 18.00

215.54_ 17410

215.54 174.10
87.84 69.84

== Net of provision for impairment amounting INR 45 05 (March 31, 2019 : 27 05) and INR 42 79 (March 31, 2019 : 42 79) for Loginext Solutions Private Limited and Socomo Technologies Private Limited.

# Converted to investrnent in subsidiary during the year ended March 31, 2019
* Investments made during the year

(This space is intentionally left blank)




Standalone Finoncial Siatements
One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standal Fi lal § for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, nnless otherwise stated)

7. Financial assets

7 (a) Investments - Current

Investments at lair value through profit and loss
Mutual Funds (Quoted)

Aditya Birla Sun life Liquid Fund - Growth - Direct Plan
7,982,579 units ( March 31, 2019 :Nil units)

Axis Liquid Fund- Direct Growth
1,163,693 units ( March 31, 2019 :217,056 units)

DSP Liquidity Fund-Direct Plan-Growth
896.425 units ( March 31, 2019 :Nil units)

ICIC! Prudential Liquid Fund - Direct Plan - Growth
3,388,688 units ( March 31, 2019 22,681,730 units)

[CICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth (refer note (i) below)
5,139,147 units ( March 31, 2019 :5,139,147 units)

IDFC Cash Fund Direct Plan - Growth
1,010,455 units ( March 31, 2019 :10,068 units)

Kotak Liquid Fund Direct Plan Growth
608,354 units (March 31, 2019 Nil units)

‘Nippon India Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan
450,057 units ( March 31, 2019 :Nil units)

Reliance Liquid Fund - Direct Plan Growth Plan - Growth Option
Nil units ( March 31, 2019 :1,677,500 units)

SBI Liquid Fund- Direct - Growth (Formerly SBI Premier Liquid Fund)
798,613 units ( March 31, 2019 :2,597,386 units)

UT!- Liquid -Cash Plan-Growth Direct
683,599 units ( March 31, 2019 102,459 units)

Total (A)

_

,_..--""’":—\-...‘___l‘.
APAC-aon 2,
PILAAT-5GH NG,

%
-
=
A
PN

Asat As at
__March 31, 2020 ____March 31.2019
255.09
25652 45.01
254 65
99.55 626 96
15098 142 05
242 69 228
244 25
21831
765 26
248 29 760 67
22227 3136
2,192.60 2373.59
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the S dal Fi lal ts for the year ended March 31, 2020

(A

In INR Crores, unless otherwlse siated) _ I = —

As at
March 31, 2020

Debentures (unquoted)

Ciqual Limited (refer note (iii) and (iv) below)
Nil (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Convertible Loan Notes of GBP 0 01 each

Total (B)
Investments at amortised cost
Debt Instruments (quoted)

LIC Housing Finance Limuted 8 75% 21 Dec 2020 5094
500 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,018,877 each

LIC Housing Finance Limited 7.03% 28 Dec 2021 026
500 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,000,000 each

Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd 7 50% NCD 10 Nov 2020 2572
250 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,006,960 each

HDFC Series V-002 8 51% 15 July 2020 26 38
250 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,009,252 each

HDFC Series W-001 7 15% 16 Sep 2021 065
250 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,003,676 each

LIC Housing Finance Limited 7.03% 28 Dec 2021 030
500 (March 31, 2019 : Nit) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 999,978 each

HDFC Series V-002 8 51% 15 July 2020 21110
2,000 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,009,226 each

LIC Housing Finance Limited 8 80% 24 Dec 2020 102 85
1,000 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,018,617 each

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 8 65% 26 Mar 2021 5104
500 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,020,747 each

Tata Capital Financial Services Limited 8 65% 26 Mar 2021 5103
500 (March 31, 2019 ' Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,020,528 each

Kotak Mahindra Prime Ltd 0% 9 Sep 2020 96 74
1,000 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 967,368 each

HDFC Series U-008 8 70% 15 Dec 2020 5137
500 (March 31, 2019 - Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,017,216 each

Bajaj Finance Limited Secured 7.2525% 10 Nov 2020 154 04
1,500 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,004,575 each

HDFC Series U-010 8 62% 15 Oct 2020 115 00
1,100 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,012,261 each

As at
___March 31,2019

LIC Housing Finance Limited 8 75 % NCD 8 Mar 2021 2549

250 (March 31, 2019 : Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,020,750 each

LIC Housing Finance Limited 7 085% NCD 23 Apr 2019 99 06
Nil (March 31, 2019 : 1000) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,000,000 each

Total (C) 962.91 T 99.06
Total current investments [A+B+C| 3.155.51 “2,472.65

(This space is intentionally lefi blank)




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standal Fi ial for the year ended March 31, 2020

(An in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

7(b) Investments - Non Current
As at As at

__March 31,2020~ March 31,2019
Investments at falr value through OCI (refer note (il) below)
Unquoted equity shares (Fully pald up)
Ciqual Limited (refer note (iii) and (iv) below)

29,43,276 (March 31, 2019 29,43,276) equity shares of GBP 0 01 each

Highorbit Careers Private Limited ( refer note (v) below) 038
Nil (March 31, 2019  235) equity shares of INR 10 each

ZEPO Technologies Private Limited 228 228
3,458 (March 31, 2019 : 3,458) Equity shares of face value INR 10 each

Red Pixels Ventures Limited 037 037
1,093 (March 31, 2019 : 1,093) Equity shares of face value INR 10 each

Total (A) 2.65 303

Investments at falr value through Proflt and Joss

Ungquoted Compulsorily Convertible Preference shares (Fully pald up)
Raining Clouds Tech Private Limited (refer note (iii) below)
3,620 (March 31, 2019 - 3,620) Redeemable Convertible Preference Shares of INR 10 each

Busy Bees Logistics Solution Private Limited 59 25 8216
18,121 (March 31, 2019 : 18,121) Compulsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 10 each

Avenues Payments India Private Limited (refer note (iii) below) 700
11,379 (March 31, 2019  11,379) Compulsorily Convertible Preference share of face value of INR 100 each

Pilani Experts Technology Labs Private Limited 042 042
289 (March 31, 2019 289) Compulssorily Convertible Preference share of face value INR 100 each

59.67 89.58

Unquoted equity shares (Fully paid up)
Paytm E-commerce Private Limited 1008 574
2,105 (March 31, 2019 : 1,792) Equity shares of face value INR 10 each held by Employee Welfare Trust

Pilani Experts Technology Labs Private Limited 312 84
1,277 (March 31, 2019 1,277) equity shares of INR 10 each

Total (B) Y A T A T
Investments at amortised cost
Debt instruments (quoted)

LIC Housing Finance Limited 7 03% 28 Dec 2021 50 00
500 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,000,000 each

HDFC Series W-001 7 15% 16 Sep 2021 25 09
250 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 1,003,676 each

LIC Housing Finance Limited 7 03% 28 Dec 2021 50 00
500 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 999,978 each

Kotak Mahindra Investments Ltd 0% 28 Oct 2021 22 09
250 (March 31, 2019 Nil) Redeemable Non Convertible Debentures of INR 883,748 each

Total (C) 147.18
Total Non Current investments [A+B+C] N 222.70 B 100.19
Total Current [nvestments 3,155 51 2,472 65
Total Non-Current [nvestments 22270 10019
3378.21 2.572.8_4
Aggregate book value of unquoted Investments 75.52 100.19
Aggregate book value of quoted investments 3302.69 2,472.65
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 3.302.69 2,472.65
Aggregate amount of impalrment in the value of Investments 12.67 5.67

Notes to 7 (a) and 7 (b) above
(i) ICICI Prudential Liquid - Direct Plan - Growth is marked under lien by banks for bank overdraft, working capital demand loan and term loan amounting to INR 140 00 (March 31, 2019 142 05)

(ii) Investments at fau value through OCI (fully paid) reflect investment in unquoted equity securities Refer note 30 for deternunation of their fail values

(iii) The Company holds these investments, however the fair value is Nil
(iv) In previous year, Ciqual Limited has converted 27,876,274 loan notes of GBP 0 01 each mto 2,815,787 ordinary shares of GBP 001 each As at March 31, 2020 the company is in the process of liquidation

(v) Investment sold duning the year

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standal Fi ial S
(Amounts In INR Crores, unless atherwise stated)

7(c) Loans

Inter Corporate Loans#
with related parties (refer note 25)
Others

Security deposits
Less: Loss allowance for security deposits

Break-up of security detatls

Secured, considered good

Unsecured, considered good

Security deposit which have significant increase in credit risk
Security deposit Credit Impaired

Loss allowance
Total Loans

for the year ended March 31, 2020

~ Non-Current o Current
As at ) As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2018
360 360 292
= 2284 2122
151 74 104 50 42 89 29 00
(011) (011) ~ = =
155.23 104.39 69.33 303.6) .
~ Asat - As al
March 31, 2020 _March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
15523 104 39 69 33 303 63
on 011
o 15534 104.50 69.33 30363
(0.11) 0.11) - e
155.23 104.39 69.33 303.63

#As on March 31, 2020, the inter corporate loan includes loans given to one subsidiary and other party after complying with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 The loans have been given in
accordance with terms and conditions of the underlying agreements Outstanding Joans carry interest rate in the range of 9 85% to 12%

As on March 31, 2019, the inter corporate loan includes loans given to one subsidiary and other parties after complying with the provisions of section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013, The loans have been given n
accordance with terms and conditions of the underlying agreements Outstanding loans carry interest rate in the range of 8% to 11%
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Notes to the Standal. Fi fal
(A in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

ts for the year ended March 31, 2020

7(d) Other financlal assets

Bank balances

Deposits with original maturity for more than 12 months (Refer note 10(a)(b) & 10(a)(c))

Others

Loan to employees

Other advances recoverable in cash

Accrued Interest on Debt Instruments ineasured at amortised cost
Interest accrued but not due on fixed deposits

Derivative Asset

Other receivable from other parties (Refer note 35)

Unbilled revenue

Unbilled revenue - related parties (Refer note 25)

Less: Loss allowance for unbilled revenue

Amount recoverable from Payment Gateway banks*
Unsecured, consldered good

Amount recoverable from other parties

Amount recoverable from related parties (Refer note 25)
Unsecured, consldered doubtful

Amount recoverable from other parties

Less : Loss allowance

Unsecured, consldered good

Amount recoverable from related parties (Refer note 25)
Amount recoverable from other parties (Refer note 35)
Unsecured, considered doubtful

Amount recoverable from related parties (Refer note 25)

Less Loss allowance for recoverable from related parties

Total [A+B+C]

* The amount represent recoverable from payment gateway banks on account of credit card/debit card and net banking transactions related to third party merchants

Break up of financiai assets carried at amortised cost

Trade receivables (Note 8)

Cash and cash equivalents (Note 10(a}))

Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents (Note 10(b))
Security deposits (Note 7(c))

Inter corporate loans (Note 7(c))

Others (Note7(d))

Investments (Note 7(a) and 7(b))

Break up of financlal assets carried at fair value

Investments at fair value through OCI (Refer note 7(b))

Investiments at fair value through Profit and loss (Refer note 7(a) &7(b))

Derivative Asset fair value through Profit and loss (Rerfer Note 7(d))

Non Current = Current
o As at - As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
1;350.16 299 83 76 98 48
- 324
- 933 18 21
- 806 743
2223 032 331 369
2093 =
564 26 - -
- - 146 58 204 34
- 18 47 .
- - (20 08) (17.80)
1,957.58 331 249.43 J17.59
- 261.14 65071
286.39 51103
- - T 304 » 3.04
550.57 1,164.78
~ - . ) (.04) (3.04)
B : : 541.53 1,161.74
1283 2509 186 31 116 25
- 108 41 129 57 297 25
o = - 339 339
1283 133 50 31927 416 89
o = - (339) _(339)
12.33 133.50 315.88 413.50
- 1,970.41 136.81 1.112.84 1,892.83
o - Non-current - Cureent _
As at o As at .
March 31,2020 March 31, 2019 ___March 31, 2020 March 31. 2019
- 32750 242 21
- 285 60 23522
- 621
151 63 104 39 42 88 2900
360 26 44 274 63
1,949 48 136 .81 1,112 84 1,892 83
— 14718 - 962 91 99 .06
2,251.89 241.20 2,758.17 2,779.16
) Mon-current I B __Currenl_ :
As As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
265 303 .
7287 97 16 2,192 60 2,373 59
2093
96.45 10019 2.192.60 2,373.59




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standal F 1al Stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2020
(A in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated) - - - = 4.4
8. Trade recelvables As at As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,209
Trade Receivables 34977 26275
Receivables from related parties (Refer Notes (i) & (ii) below) 66 10 5187,
Receivables from other parties (Refer note 35) 1932 180
Less: Loss allowance 1107 69) (7421)
327.50 242.21
Current 327 50 24221
Non-current
Break-up of security details As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Trade receivables -
Secured, considered good - -
Unsecured, considered good 36333 26498
Trade receivable which have significant increase in credil risk L
Trade receivable Credit Impaired 7186 5144
435.19 316.42
Less: Loss allowance (10769 (7421)
Total Trade recelvables 327.50 242.21

(i) No trade or other recewvable are due from directors ot other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person Nor any trade or other receivable are due from firms or private companies
respectively in which any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 25

(ii) For related party receivables, refer note 25

9. Other assets o B

(iii) Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and carry a credit period of upto 90 days

_ MNon-current Current
As at As at As at ) As at
— _March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Capltal advances
Unsecured, considered good 527 227
Doubtful 008 _oo08 e
535 235 - o
Less Provision for doubtful advances (0.08) (0 08) =
A 527 2.27 e
Advances other than capital advances
Advances 1o vendors
Unsecured, considered good 2027 9991 568 92 842 44
Doubtful - o - - 480 472
- 2027 9991 573.72 847.16
Less Provision for doubtful advances - - B (4 80) (4.72)
B . 20.27 99.91 i 56892 842.44
Others '
Balances with government authorities :
Goods and service tax input credit 2758 495 88 366 68
Value Added Tax (VAT) credil receivable - 019
Prepayments 3091 3886 5498 63,50
Advances to related parties® (refer note 25) - - 166 93 112,02
C __ 58.46 38.86 717.79 542.39
Total (A+B+C) 84.00 14104 128671 138483

*No advances are recoverable from directors or other officers of the Company either severally or jointly with any other person Nor any advance are recoverable from firms or private companes respectively in which

any director is a partner, a director or a member, except as disclosed in note 25

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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One97 Conimunicatlons Limited

CIN: U72200D12000PLC108985

Notes to the Standal Fi lal $ ts for the year ended March 31, 2020
(A ts In INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

10(a). Cash and cash equlvalents

Cash and cheque on hand
Balance with banks
- On current accounts
On cash credit account
- Deposits with original maturity for less than 3 months

Notes :

As al As at
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
337 003
27273 23519
950
285.60 235.22

(@) There are no repatriation restrictions with regard to cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the reporting period and prior period
(b) Fixed deposits included in note 7(d) and 10(b) are marked under lien by banks for guarantees amounting to INR 57 31 (March 31, 2019 : INR 107 38) issued against various contracts

(c) Fixed deposits included in note 7(d) and 10(b) with a carrying amount of NIL (March 31, 2019 : INR 0.30) are subject to first charge to secure the Company's Working Capital facility

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

Cash and cheque on hand
Balance with banks
- On current accounts
- Deposits with original maturity of less than 3 months

Other bank balances
Bank overdraft*
‘Working capital demand loan*

Cash and cash equivalents for the purpose of cash flow statement

*Bank borrowings are g 4 idered to be fi

As al As at
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
337 003
27273 23519
950 -
285.60 235.22
- (695 50)
(128 18) =
asy (69550
157.42 (460.28)

entity’s cash management, accordingly, bank overdrafts and working capital demand loan are included a3 a component of cash and cash equivalents

10(b). Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents

Deposits with original maturity of more than 3 months but Jess than 12 months (Refer note 10(a)(b) & 10(a)(c))

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Onc97 Commuunlcations Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standal Financial for the year ended March 31,2020

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated) o =1 - — T E 4

11. Equity Share Capital and other equlty

11 (a). Share Capltal Number of Shares Amount

Authorlsed equity share capital

As al April 01, 2018 5,61,00,000 56 10
Increase/ (decrease) during the year 4,80,06,600 o 48 01
As at March 31, 2019 10,41,06,600 104.11
Increase/ (decrease) during the year = =
As at March 31, 2020 10,41,06,600 104.11
Authorized preference share capital

As at Aprll 01, 2018 27,59,000 48 01
Increase/ (decrease) during, the year® . (48.01)

(27,59,000)

As at March 31,2019
Increase/ (decrease) during the year = R
As at March 31, 2020 .

=Converted into authorised equity share capital in the ratio 1: 17.4

Terms/ rights attached to equity shares
All the equity shares issued Lo investors and other shareholders shall rank pari passu and have a par value of Rs 10 per share Each shareholder is eligible for one vote per share held only

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up shares As at As at
__March 31,2020 __ March 31,2019
60,435,025 (March 31, 2019 : 57,533,866) equity shares of INR 10 each fully paid up 6043 5753
Total issued, subscribed and fully paid-up share capital 60.43 _ §7.53
a. Reconcillation of the shares ding at the beg g and at the end of the reporting year
Equity shares March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31,2019
Number __ Amount Number __Amount
Shares outstanding at the beginning, of the year* 5,72,56,129 5753 5,49,98,632 5532
Shares issued during the year# 28,03,511 277 20,94,650 205
Shares issued during the year - ESOP (Refer note 24) 1.28,015 013 1.62.847 0.16
Shares outstanding at the end of the year* 6,01,87,655 60.43 5,72,56,129 5§7.53
= Net of treasury shares 247.370 (March 31, 2019: 277,737) al il cost through employee welfare trust (refer note 2 2(m))
# Shares issued during the year includes 30,367 (March 31, 2019: 48,902) shares issued out of treasury shares
b. Detalis of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the Company
Name of shareholder March 31, 2020 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2019
Number of Shares held % holding Number of Shares % holding
Antfin (Netherlands) Holding B V 1,83,30,122 30.33% ]
Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited - 1,75,44,525 30 49%
SVF India Holding (Cayman) Limited 1,13,26,223 18 74% 1,13,26,223 19 69%
Mr Vijay Shekhar Sharma 90,51,624 14.98% 90,51,624 15 73%
SAIF Il Mauritius Company Limited 74,91,061 12 40% 74,91,061 1302%
Alibaba com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 44,28.214 733% 44,228,214 7 70%
SAIF Partners [ndia IV Limited 31,80,202 526% 31,80,202 S 53%

c. Shares reserved for issue under optlons

For details of shares reserved for issue under the employee stock options plan (ESOP) of the Company (refer note 24)
d. Aggregate number of bonus shares issued, shares bought back and share Issued for consideration other than cash during the perlod of five years immediately preceding the reporting date:

The Company has not issued any shares for consideration other than cash during the current year (March 31, 2019 333,035 shares issued for consideration other than cash; March 31, 2018: Nil shares. March 31, 2017
Nil shares; March 31, 2016 Nit shares, March 31, 2015 Nil Shares) The Company has not issued bonus shares and has not bought back shares during the period of five years immedialely preceding the reporting dale

e, Insiruments entirely equity in nature

Consequent to framework agreement entered on November 30, 2017 between the Company, Little Internet Private Limiled ("LI'), Shareholders of LI, Nearbuy India Private Limited ("NBI"), and Shareholders of NBL
the shareholders of NBI swapped their shares in NBI with shares in LI, resulting in their becomning 37% shareholders of L1 and NBI becoming wholly owned subsidiary of LI The Company through further restructuring
of its existing investments in LI (5%) and Little Singapore Pte Limited ("LS") (27%), as well as through its obligation to issue further shares amounting to INR 173 63 to other shareholders of L1, became 6326 shareholder
in LI The restructuring of existing investment in L1 and LS, as discussed above, resulted in LS buying back 27% stake of the Company in LS for INR 77 40 and the Company further infusing INR 83 53 in L1 The
buyback resulted in the Corupany recording gain of INR 44 11 Company’s obligation fo issue further shares amounting to INR 173 63 to other shareholders of L] was disclosed as "Instruments entitely equity in nature”
under Equity as at March 31, 2018

During the previous year March 31, 2019, the Company had allotted shares amounting to Rs 17259 based on the share swap report This had resulted in an adjustment of Rs | 04 in the carrying value of nvestments in

Little India Private Limited
(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Standalone Flnanclal Statements

One97 Communlcations Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standal Financlal St for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts In INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

11 (b). Other equity

-

. Reserve and Surplus
Securities premium
Employee stock options oulstanding account (ESOP Reserve)
Relained earnings

Total reserve and surplus (A)

(1) Securlties premium

Opening balance

Add: transferred from ESOP Reserve on exercise of slock options
Add: amount received during Lhe year on issue of shares

Add shares issued for consideration other than cash

Less: amount utilized towards share issue expenses

Balance at the end of the year

(It) Employee stock options outstanding account (ESOP Reserve)
Opening balance

Add: Share based payment expense (refer note 24)

Add Share based payment for employees of group companies (refer note 24)
Less amount transferred to securilies premium on exercise of stock options
Less: reversal on forfeiture of stock options (refer note 24)

Less: adjustment on cancellation of unvested ESOP (refer note 24)

Balance at the end of the year

(1) Retalned earnings

Opening balance

Loss for the year

Less: remeasurement of post-employee benefit obligation

Add: transfer from employee stock options outstanding account (refer note 24)

Add: adjustment on cancellation of unvested ESOP (refer note 24)

Add transfer from FVTOCI 10 etained earning on account of derecognition of assets

Balance at ihe end of the year

2. Share application money pending allotment
Opening balance

Less Exercise of share options

Receipt of share application money

Balance at the end of the year (B)

3. Other reserves- FVTOCI

Opening balance

Net change in fair value of equity instruments at FVTOCI

Transfer of FVTOC! to retained eaming on account of derecognition of assets
Balance at the end of the year (C)

Total other equity (A+B+C)
= Amount below rounding ofT norms adopted by the Company

Nature and purpose of reserves
(1) Securities premjum

Securities premium is used to record the premium on issue of shares. The reserve is utilised m accordance with the provisions of the Act

(i) Employee stock optlons outstanding account (ESOP Reserve)

As al
March 31, 2020

As at

March 31,2019

18,895 72 13,822 69
303 01 198 46~
(10,845 12) _ (8,04040)
8,353.61 5,980.75
13,822 69 11,324.23
3592 18.69
5,051 15 2,187 41
- 294 75
— (40n (2.39)
- 18.895.72 13,822.69
198 46 127 70
123 53 86 06
4556 25.90
(3592) (18 69)
0.19) (344)
(2843) (19.07)
o 303.01 198.46
(8,040 40) (4,101 84)
(2,833 18) (3,959 64)
(0.70) (143)
019 344
2843 1907
054 .
_ (10,845.12) (8,040.40)
005
(00%)
(225) (354)
020 129
(0.54) ] :
@.59) Q29
8,351.02 5.978.50

Employee stock options outstanding account is used to recognise the grant dale fair value of ophons issued to employees under the One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan

(ill) FYTOCI Reserve

The Company has elected Lo recognise changes in the fair values of the certain investmenls in equity nstruments in other comprehensive income These changes are accumulated within the
FVTOCI reserve within equity The Company transfers amounts from this reserve to relained eaming when relevant equity securities are derecognised

12. Provisions

Provision for employee benefits
Provision for gratuity (refer note 26 )
Provision for leave benefits™

Non-current — Current
R e As al —
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
865
47.16 3763
8.65 4716 37.63

*The entire amount of the provision of INR 47 16 (March 31, 2019 INR 37 63) is presented as current, since the company does not have an unconditional right to defer settiement for any of these obligations However
based on past experience, the company does not expect all employees to avail the full amount of accrued leave or require payment for such leave within the next 12 months The amount not expected to be settled within

next twelve months is INR 35 81 ( March 31, 2019 INR 28 05)

(This space is intennionally left blank)
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One97 Communlcalijons Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standal Fi lal Stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amounts in IVt Crores, unless otherwise stated) ——

13. Financlal liabilities

(a) Borrowings Mon-current - . Current
As at As at =
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Secured
Loan repayable on deinand- bank overdraft (refer note (i) below) - 695 50
Working capital demand loan (refer note (i) below) 128 18 .
Term loan (refer nole (iii) below) - 7291 -
o - 201.09 695.50
Unsecured
Deferred paymnent liabilities from Noida authority* (refer note (i) below) . 3691 - -
= o 36.91 = -
Total borrowings B e T 201.09 695.50
Less: Current maturities of deferred payment liablities (Refer note 13(c)) - 995 - .
Total borrowings (as per Balance Sheef) - 269 201.09 695.50
Note:

(i) Working capital demand loan and Bank Overdraft (borrowing in INR) are repayable on demand and carry interest at I-MCLR and "spread” per annum. As on the reporting date, I-MCLR is 7.95% (March 31, 2019
8 15%) and #pread 1 1% (March 31, 2019 1 2%). Working oapital demand sty el Bank overddrall are secured by way of hypothecation on the entire current assets, pledge on mutual funds (INR 140) and also

biekied by irmevocable and pegional guarantes of Mr. Vijay Shekhar Shama, Charman and Managang Direvton

(i) Delerred payment Hatalities to Moida Authosity (in INR) ts i tespect ol Tand acgured on finance lease, 1w ropayable i eight equal half yearly installments, with first instalment starting from December 31, 2018 and

carry inferest ut e rare of 11 percent per annum compuuigled hall yealy. The lessor Tas i right 1o caneel the aliotment in the event ol defanlt

In the current year the Deferred payment linbilities to Nowda Authonty (in INR) i in resprect of lind acquired on finanee lease hos scconnted a5 per IND AS 116 and have been disclosed under lease liability in the

balance sheet (Refer Note 3(b))
*New Okhla Industrial Development Authority, Uttar Pradesh

(iii) Term Loan (in INR) is in respect of point of sale (POS) machine business segment, principal amount of each Iranclic is repayable on a monthly basis in 11 equal montlily uistallinents, with first installment starting
from the subsequent month of respective Irimnche disbursement and each tranche i.e trance -1, tranche-2 and tranelie-3 carry differant 1-MCLR rate i.e. 8 55%, 8.35% and 257 respectively but with same spread i.e
1.2%. Term loan are secured by way of hypothecation on the entire current assets, pledge on mutual finds (INR 140 ) and also backed by irrevacable and personal guarantee of Mr Vijay Shekhar Sharma, Chairman

and Managing Director

Nei debt reconclliatior o March 31, 20240 ) - R March 31,2019 .
Non current Current Non current Current
borrowings _ borrowings ___borrowings* ___borrowings _

Opening net debt 695.50 - 241,65

Cash flows assets acquired (494 65) 36.00 453 85

Interest expense 45.31 443 10 57

Interest paid o = (45.07) (3.52) B (10 57)

Closing net debi o - 20109 36.91 695.50

=includes INR 9 95 classified as current maturities of deferred payment liablities under other financial liabilities

As at As ai
March 31, 2020 Mar 31, 2019

(b) Trade payables

Current

Trade payables# 471 54 54320

Trade payables to related parties (Refer note 25) 101 84 120 54

Trade payables to other parties (Refer note 35) o - ) 954

573.38 673.28

#refer note 29 for MSMED disclosure i N )

(i) Total Outstanding dues of micro and small enterprises 1133 1124

(ii) Total Outstanding dues other than (i} above 56205 662 04

5§73.38 673.28

(c) Other financlal liabllities

Current

Payable to merchants® 655 55739

Current matiities of deferred payment liablities (including interest accrued and not due) (Refer note 13(a)) - 995

Payable on purchase of fixed assels 087 4199

Payable on purchase of fixed assels- related parties (Refer note 25) 251 160

Employee benefits payable 11231 5717

Other amount received from customers 60 31 2475

Other amounl received from customers- related parties (Refer note 25) . 01s

Others 16.05 253

Others- relaled parties (Refer note 25) - 310

Others- Other parties (Refer note 35) 055 055

199.15 699.18

*The Company uses a Nodal Account to receive money through debit/credit card and net banking transactions towards all transactions happerung on its portal, as well as to settle the respective merchants The amounts
collected but yet 10 be transferred to merchants are netted off with nodal account having balance of INR 427 27 (March 31, 2019: INR 197 16) Gross payable to merchanl includes payable to related parties (refer note

25) INR 22 71 (March 2019: 244 69) and 1o other parties (refer note 35) INR 6 60 (March 2019 42 67)

Terms and conditions of the above financial Liabilities:
(i) Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and carry credit period of uptoe 60 days
Note: All financial liabllitles are carried at amortized cost
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standal Fi lal § for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts In INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

14 (a) Other current liabilities

Other payable

Deferred Revenue

Statutory dues payable:
Tax deducted at source payable
GST Payable
Tax collected at source payable
Provident fund payable
Other statutory dues

* amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company

14 (b) Contract liabilities

Contract liabilities

R recognized in relation te carrled forward contract liabllities

Contract liabilities recognized as revenue during the year

Current
As at As al
- March 31, 2020 i Mar 31, 2019
795 i~
27
241 29 65
149 51 11507
686 676
126 146
o n - 009
2175 _153.03
Non-current Current
As at Asat
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 March 31, 2020 Mureh 31,2019
34225 - 294 35 35287 .
342.25 — - 29435 _ 352.87
338.21 -

33821 _ E
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standal Fi {al 8! for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts In INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

15. Revenue from operations

Revenue from contracts with customers
Sale of services (refer notes (i) below)
Other operating revenue - recovery of marketing expense (refer note 35)

i) Refer note 34 for disaggregated details of revenue from operations and refer note 28(a)(ii)) for rental income

16. Other income

Gain on sale of Investments measured at FVTPL (net)
Fair value gain on financial instruments measured at FVTPL (net)
Profit on sale of property, plant and equipment (net)
Liabilities / Provision no longer required written back
Exchange differences (net)
Miscellanous Income
Interest income
-on bank deposits
-Interest on Income tax refund
-Interest on [nter corporate loans - measured at amortized cost
-Interest Income on unwinding of discount - financial assets measured at amortized cost
-Interest [ on deb es ed at amortized cost
Other non operating income

17. Employee beneflts expense

Salaries, bonus and incentives

Contribution to provident and other funds
Share based payment expenses (refer Note 24)
Leave Encashment Expense

Gratuity expenses (refer Note 26)

Staff welfare expenses

18. Finance costs

Interest

- Interest and finance charges on lease liabilities
- on borrowings at amortised cost

- Interest on late deposit on statutory dues

- on others

19. Depreciation and amortization expense
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment
Depreciation on right-of-use-assets*
Amortisation of intangible assets

“This amount 15 net of cross charge of INR 11 60 (refer note 3(b))

(This space is intentionally left blank)

Year ended
March }1, 2020

Year ended
March 31, 2019

2,859 84 3,049 87
25526 .
3.115.10 3,049.87
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 ) March 31, 2019_ —
3N 114 86
1625 101 32
110 082
512 591
282
254 065
3112 1142
823 419
1464 107
67 34 4547
1013 5022
528 299
235.49 341.74
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 __March 31, 2019
649 27 4187 67
1130 1106
123 52 8595
22 42 20 51
685 601
______ 1176 1658
- 82512 627.78
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
20 40
2491 1500
003 037
022 113
45.56 1650
Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
11597 69 20
1982
13 661
143.18 75.81
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Notes to the Standal. Fi lal Stat ts for the year ended March 31, 2020
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20. Other expenses

Payment gateway expenses

Connectivity and content fees

Customer and merchant onboarding, expenses
Contest expenses

Communication costs

Legal and professional fees

Marketing and business promotion expenses
Advertisement expenses

Subcontract expenses

Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) expenditure (Refer Note 38)
Fixed assets written off

Insurance

Bank Charges

Payment lo auditors (Refer details below)
Postage and Courier

Power and fuel

Printing and stationery

Trade receivables / advance written off
Provision for doubtful advances and unbilled receivables
Provision for impairment of trade receivables
Repair and maintance - Buildings

Repair and maintance - Others

Repair and maintance - Plant and machinery
Rates and taxes

Rent (Refer Note 28)

Goods and Service tax expense expense off
Fair value loss on Financials assets

Travelling and conveyance

Exchange differences (net)

Miscellaneous expenses

Payment to Auditors
As anditors
-Audit fee
-Tax audit fee
-Limited Review (Including fee paid to previous auditors in the previous year)

In other capacity

-Other Services (Certification fees)
-Reimbursement of expenses (Including fee paid to previous auditors in the previous year)

* Amount below rounding off norms adopted by the Company

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
2,250.29 2,241 56
37778 277 62
8134 43 68
826 1220
3383 2997
13978 90 95
998.69 2,805 01
43385 561 54
248 21 27120
0.82 159
003 006
626 815
493 352
109 123
414 354
879 938
101 148
196 b
236 1227
3348 12 69
1280 1424
3011 17 95
2052 3952
393 536
588 17 89
147 788
8808
27 49 3427
5.64
14 86 9.96
4,847.68 6,534.71
051 040
003 002
038 070
014 006
003 005
1.09 1.23
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Notes 1o the Standal Fi ial S ts for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated) . — =

21. Exceptional Items Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 ) March 31, 2019
Gan on sale of gaming business (refer note 32} - 42.20
Loss on sale of investment in associates and subsidiaries (refer note (d) and (e) below) (1051) -
Provision for impairmient of inveshments in associates and subsidiaries (refer note (b) and (c) below) (311.67) = (133.22)
(322.18) (91.02)

a) On April 9, 2018. sharehelders of the Company approved the transfer of online gaming business on a going concern basis by way of slump sale, 1o Paytm First Games Private Limited (formerly known as Gamepind
Entertainment Private Limited) Paytm First Games Private Limited, is an Indian joint venture company with 55% shares held by Paytm Ententainment Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and 45% shares
held by AGTech Media Holdings Limited. The Company had transferred its online gaming business on June 1, 2018 to Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited on a going, concemn basis for a consideration of INR
3391 The net liabilities of the business transferred were INR 8 29 The Company had recognised a gain of INR 42 20 which has been disclosed as exceptional gain in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the
year ended March 31, 2019

b) The Company basis its of future b projections of its subsidiaries i e. Orbgen Technologies Private Limited, Little Internet Private Limited and Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited has recognized
provision for impairment in the carrying value of its investments of INR 43.40, INR 220 27 and INR 30 (March 31, 2019 - INR 75 11, INR 51 and Nil) respectively which has been shown as exceptional item in the
Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 The impairment loss for Orbgen Technologies Private Limited, Little Internet Private Limited and Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited
was based on the equity value calculated based on cash flow projections with the business plan used for impairment testing using discounted cash flow method The management has computed equity value of Orbgen
Technologies Private Limited and Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited based on discount rate of 18 4% and 25% and terminal growth rate used in extrapolating cash flows beyond the planning period of 2 and 1 78
times of revenue, respectively, of the terminal year For Little Internet Private Limited management has computed equity value on a discount rate of 17 6% and have applied terminal growth rate which is 4 times of profl
afler tax beyond the planning period

¢) The Company basis its assessment of future business projections of one of its associates i e. Loginext Solutions Private Limited has recognized provision of INR 18 and INR 4 55 for impairment in the carying vafue of
its investment which has been shown as exceptional item in the statement of Profit and loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019 respectively

d) In the current financial year the Company had entered into a Share Purchase Agreement to acquire 40% stake in Blueface Technologies Private Limited (*Blueface’) and had invested 9 86 crore for acquisition of 40%
holding Further during Lhe current year, the Company had sold its 40% stake in Blueface Technologies Private Limited (‘Blueface’) for a cash consideration of INR 0 03 and recognized a loss of INR 9 83

2) On September 10, 2019, the Company entered into a sale agreement to dispose of its investment in subsidiary Cube26 Software Private Limited resulting in loss of INR 0 68

) During the year ended March 31, 2019, the investments in compulsory convertible debentures (CCDs) in QorQL Private limited (QorQL) were converted into equity shares Such conversion resulted in QorQL becoming,
a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. On conversion, the Company, basis its assessment of operations of QorQL and its future business projections, recognised provision of INR 2 00 towards impairment in the
carrying value of its investment During the year ended March 31, 2019, the Company has further invested INR 0 56 in QorQl, which has been fully impaired

22. Earnings per shares (EPS)

Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) for the period attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares oulstanding during the

period
Diluted EPS amounts are calculated by dividing the profit/ (loss) attributable to equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period plus
the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on conversion of all the dilutive potential equity shares into equity shares

The following reflects the income and share data used in the basic and diluted EPS computations:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Loss attributable to equity holders:

Continuing operations (2,83318) (3,954 33)

Discontinued operation (531)
Loss attributable (o equity holders for basic earnings (2,833.18) (3,959.64)
Weighled average number of equity shares for basic EPS 5,82,25,828 B 5.60,87,996
Earnlngs per share for continulng operations
Basic and Diluted eamings per equity share (INR per share)* (486 58) (705.02)
Earnlngs per share for discontinued operations
Basic and Diluted eamnings per equity share (INR per share)* (0.95)
Earnings per share for Ing and di inued operatlons
Basic and Diluted earnings per equity share (INR per share)* (486 58) (705.97)

“ In view of losses during the current year and previous year, the options wlich are anti-dilutive have been ignored in the calculation of diluted earnings per share Accordingly, there is no variation
between basic and diluted earnings per share
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One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

23. Significant accounting judgements, estimates and assumptions

The preparation of the Company’s Standalone Financial Statements requires management to make judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and the accompanying disclosures,
and the disclosure of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes that
require a material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or liabilities affected in future periods.

Estimates and assumptions

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting date, that have a
significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year,
are described below.

Deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets can be recognised for deductible temporary differences (including unused tax losses) only to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilised. As the
Company is yet to generate operating profits, Management has assessed that as at March 31, 2020 it is not probable that such
deferred tax assets can be realised in excess of available taxable temporary differences. Management re-assesses unrecognised
deferred tax assets at each reporting date and recognises to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable profits will
allow the deferred tax asset to be recovered. For details about deferred tax assets, refer note 27.

Defined benefit plans (gratuity benefits)

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and the present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial
valuations. An actuarial valuation involves making various assumptions that may differ from actual developments in the future.
These include the determination of the discount rate, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities
involved in the valuation and its long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation is highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date.

In determining the appropriate discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the interest rates of
government bonds in India. The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables for India. The mortality tables
tend to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and gratuity increases are based on
expected future inflation rates. For further details about gratuity obligations, refer note 26.

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the standalone balance sheet cannot be measured
based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured using valuation techniques including the DCF model,
Price of Recent Investment (PORI) method and Comparable Company Multiples (CCM) method. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. For further details about Fair value measurement, refer note 30.

Impairment of financial assets

The Company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit risk associated with its assets carried at amortised cost.
The impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk. Note 31 details
how the Company determines whether there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

Impairment reviews

Investments in subsidiaries and associates are tested for impairment at-least on an annual basis and when events that occur /
changes in circumstances - indicate that the recoverable amount is less than its carrying value. In calculating the value in use,
the Company is required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions inter-alia concerning the growth in EBITDA, long-
term growth rates; discount rates to reflect the risks involved. For details : uﬂl’:iggpkrmt‘ni reviews, refer note 21.
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PL.C108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

24. Employee share based payments

During the year ended March 31, 2009, the Company introduced One 97 Employee Stock Option Plan — [ for the benefit
of employees as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on September 08, 2008 and by the members in
the Extra Ordinary General Mecting held on October 22, 2008 for a total of 951,355 options. The Company has
appropriated 795,056 options of INR10 each to be granted to eligible employees which were granted on December 31,
2008. These options were granted to all eligible, permanent employees who were on rolls of Company as at December -
31, 2008 and to be settled in equity. These options have a vesting period of 4 years and were vested at one year interval
in the following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 31, 2009 B _ 10% -
‘December 31,2010 _ 20%
| December 31, 2011 - 30% -
December 31, 2012 - - 40% B

Out of 795,056 options granted, exercise price of 233,602 options granted to employees who joined the Company till
March 31, 2007 is INR10 per option and for 561,454 options granted to employees joining between April 01, 2007 and
December 31, 2008 the exercise price is Rs 49 per option.

On September 03, 2010, the Company has appropriated 252,101 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees (including grant of 30,000 options to independent non-executive directors) at an exercise price of INR 180
each. Options granted to independent non-executive directors were approved in Extra-Ordinary General meeting of
members held on November 22, 2010. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

'Date of vesting ) | % of total_optic;ns vesting
September 03, 2011 _ L 10%
September 03, 2012 ‘ 20%
September 03, 2013 - 30%
September 03, 2014 ' N [ 40%

On September 01, 2011, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 107,407 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,058,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on August 02, 2011 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 19, 2011.

On January 30, 2012, the Company has appropriated 4,330 options of INR 10 each to be granted to one eligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 232 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

| Date of vesting ' % of total options vesting
January 30, 2012 ] 10% )
January 30, 2013 - ) 20%
January 30, 2014 g 30%

January 30, 2015 B 40%




One97 Communications Limited
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Notes to the Standalonie Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On December 29, 2012, the Company has appropriated 196,163 options of INR 10 each to be granted to cligible
employee at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on November |
29, 2012 and by the members in the Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on December 29, 2012.

These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
December 29, 2012 10%
December 29, 2013 B 20%
December 29, 2014 ~ 30%
December 29, 2015 - 40%

On August 01, 2013, the Company has appropriated 166,668 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 180 each as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014.
30% of these options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following proportion:

Date of vesting N % of total options vesting
August 1, 2014 - L 10%

August 1, 2015 N - 20%

August 1, 2016 30% -
August 1, 2017 o - 40%

Remaining 70% of the options will be vested upon achievement of certain performance targets.

On March 31, 2014, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 260,000 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,318,762 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on January 31, 2014 and by the members in the
Extra Ordinary General Meeting held on August 31, 2014.

On April 01, 2014 the Company has appropriated 313,446 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each as ratified by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on June 10, 2015.

Date of vesting % of total optiohs vesting
April 1, 2015 10%

April 1,2016 B 20%

April 12017 30%
April 1,2018 40% o

On April 01, 2015, the Company has appropriated 491,722 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at onc year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting - % of total options vesting
April 1,2016 10%

April 1,2017 20%

“April 1,2018 ) 30%
April 1,2019 ) ) 40%
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On September 30, 2015, the Company increased the ESOP pool by adding 604,858 options taking total ESOP pool to
1,923,620 as approved by the Board of Directors in the meeting held on July 24, 2015 and by the members in the
Annual General Meeting held on September 30, 2015.

On October 01, 2015 the Company has appropriated 104,864 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible
employees at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in
following proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2016 i 10% ]
October 1,2017 20%

October 1,2018 _ - 30%

October 1,2019 ) _ 40%

On April 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 395,325 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting _ % of total options vesting
| April 1,2017 ) ) 10%

April 1,2018 20%

April 1,2019 B 30%

_April 1,2020 _ - 40%

On October 01, 2016 the Company has appropriated 97,031 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2017 ] 10% )
October 1,2018 -  20%
October 1,2019 30%
| October 1,2020 - - 40%

On April 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 361,128 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting - _ % of total options vesting -
| April 12018 0%

April 1,2019 _ _ 20%

April 1,2020 ' B 30%

April 1,2021 40% _|
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
&mounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

On October 01, 2017 the Company has appropriated 29,044 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting ) % of total options vesting
October 1,2018 . 10%
October 1,2019 20%
October 1,2020 30%

| October 1,2021  40%

On April 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 243,899 options of INR 10 each to be granted to cligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
April 1,2019 ) - 10%

April 1,2020 - . 20% |
April 1,2021  30%

April 1,2022 i o 40%

On July 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 45,649 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting

July 1,2019 _ ) 10% |
July 1,2020 - 20%

July 1,2021 _ 30%

| July 1,2022 B - 40%

Certain options will be vested upon achievement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

On October 01, 2018 the Company has appropriated 34,409 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

' Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2019 ) 10% -
October 1,2020 _ 20%

October 1,2021 - 30% -
October 1,2022 _ 4%
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On January 01, 2019 the Company has appropriated 47,958 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

[ Date of vesting - % of total options vesting
January 1,2020 - 10% |
January 1,2021 | 20%
January 1,2022 ) 30%

January 1,2023 . 40% __

On April 01, 2019 the Company has appropriated 125,408 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 4 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting

April 1,2020 10%
April 1,2021 - 20% )
April 1,2022 i 30%

April 1,2023 ~ 40%

On April 01, 2019 the Company has appropriated 86,871 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 5 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

‘Date of vesting - % of total options vesting
April 1,2020 o ] 10%

April 1,2021 B - 15%

April 1,2022 - 20%

April 12023 - 25% )
April 1,2024 ' B 30% |

On April 01, 2019 the Company has appropriated 4,375 options of INR 10 each to be granted to cligible employees at
an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 2 years at one year interval in following
proportion:

Date of vesting ) | % of total options vesting
April 1,2020 - o 50%
April 1,2021 -  50%

On October 01, 2019 the Company has appropriated 72,123 options of INR 10 each to be granted to eligible employees
at an exercise price of INR 90 each. These options have a vesting period of 5 years at one year interval in following

proportion:

Date of vesting % of total options vesting
October 1,2020 - L 10% N
October 1,2021 _ 15%

October 1,2022 L 20% N
QOctober 1,2023 _ 25% _
October 1,2024 - 30% )
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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Certain options will be vested upon achievement of operational performance targets as determined by the Board of
Directors.

All the above options issued by the Company are Equity Settled and the vested employee stock options expire in 5 years
from the date of vesting.

On March 22, 2019, the Company's shareholders in an extra ordinary general meeting authorized the Chicf Executive
Office/Managing Director of the Company to approve the cancellation/modification of unvested employee stock options
with the prior consent of the employees. Pursuant to this, the Company has cancelled 95,561 outstanding unvested
employee stock options, with prior consent of the employees. This cancellation has resulted into an accelerated share
based payment expense of INR 6.16 in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

On September 04, 2019, Company in a Board meeting approve the cancellation/modification of 84,614 outstanding
unvested employee stock options with the prior consent of the employees. This cancellation has resulted into an
accelerated share based payment expense of INR 28.43 in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The total options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 are 877,070 (March 31, 2019: 960,743) out of which 11,297 (March
31, 2019: 15,141) options have an exercise price of INR 10 each, 2,590 (March 31, 2019: 2,868) options have an
exercise price of INR 49 each, 127,544 (March 31, 2019: 127,544) options have an exercise price of INR 180 each and
735,640 (March 31, 2019: 815,190) options have an exercise price of INR 90 each.

Grant Date Number of Options | Number of Options | Exercise
outstanding outstanding Price
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019 B

December 31, 2008 11,297 15,141 10
December 31, 2008 - 2,590 ) 2,868 49
September 03, 2010 250 250 180
December 29, 2012 127,294 127,294 180
April 01,2014 2464 9,420 90
April 01, 2015 ' 4,901 38,148 90
October 01, 2015 B 11,074 | 24,362 90
April 01,2016 - 83340 123,260 90
October 01, 2016 | 54137 66,473 90

April 01,2017 150,563 203226 | 90 |
October 01, 2017 19,302 20,552 90

April 01, 2018 159456 212,596 90

July 01, 2018 ‘ 40,958 45,649 90
“October 01, 2018 10,483 23,546 90
January 01,2019 | 47,958 | 47,958 %0 |
April 01, 2019 3,190 - 90

April 01, 2019 72,920 - 90

April 01,2019 4,375 - ' 90
October 01, 2019 | 70,518 - 90

877,070 960,743
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Movements during the year

The following table illustrates the number and weighted average exercise prices (WAEP) of, and movements in, share

options during the year:

Number of Nyeiphicd Number of et
. Average . Average
Options . . Options : .
. Exercise Price Exercise Price
Particulars . -
B - - INR INR
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Outstanding at the beginning of the year 960,743 100.56 988,521 100.74
Options granted during the year 288,777 90.00 371,915 | 90.00 |
Options exercised during the year** (127,850) 87.50 | (157,960) 93.25
Options forfeited during the year (159,986) 90.00 (146,172) ~ 89.66
Options cancelled during the year (84,614) 90.00 (95,561) ~90.00
Options expired during the year _ - = - -
Options outstanding at the end of the year 877,070 101.93 960,743 100.56 |
Vested options outstanding at the end of the
year (exercisable) 421,902 | 114.76 362,016 118.04

** The weighted average share price at the date of exercise of options exercised during the year ended March 31, 2020

was INR 8,263 .83 per share (March 31, 2019: INR 6,513.33 per share).

The weighted average remaining contractual life for the share options outstanding as at March 31, 2020 was 4.55 years

(March 31, 2019: 5.71 years).

The weighted average fair value of options granted during the year was INR 8,757.29 per option (March 31, 2019 was

INR 6,181.35 per option).

The expense recognised for employee services received during the year is shown in the following table:

Expense arising from equity-settled share-based payment

transactions (refer note 17)*

Investment (ESOP issued to employees of subsidiary

companies)

Total expense arising from share-based payment transactions

*Including expenses of discontinued operations for the year ended March 31, 2020: INR 0.00 (March 31, 2019: INR

0.11)

March 31,2020  March 31,2019
123.53 86.06
45.56 25.90
169.09 111.96
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The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31, -
2020 (computed using Discounted Cash Flow & Black-Scholes model) was INR 7,995.00 per option for grant date
April 1, 2019, INR 11,291 per option for grant date October 1, 2019. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was
made using the Discounted Cash Flow & Black-Scholes model with the following assumptions:

Grant Date:- April 1, 2019
Method of Valuation - Discounted Cash Flow Method

Share price INR 7,995 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 35

Risk free interest rate 6.80-7.20%
Annualized Volatility 40.00-53.00%

Grant Date:- October 1, 2019
Method of Valuation — Black-Scholes Model

Share price INR 11,291 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 35

Risk free interest rate 6.10-6.60%
Annualized Volatility 43.00-61.00%

The weighted average fair value of options granted under the One 97 ESOP Scheme during the year ended on March 31,
2019 (computed using Black-Scholes model) was INR 6,015.60 per option for grant date April 1, 2018, INR 6,017.90
per option for grant date July 1, 2018, INR 6,762.90 per option for grant date October 1, 2018 and INR 6,762.60 per
option for grant date January 1, 2019. The estimation of fair value on date of grant was made using the Black-Scholes
model with the following assumptions:

Grant Date:- April 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,076 per share

Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each

Dividend yield % 0%

Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.20-7.40%

Annualized Volatility 59.00-64.00%
Grant Date:- July 1, 2018

Share price INR 6,076 per share

Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each

Dividend yield % 0%

Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.82-8.10%

Annualized Volatility 59.00-62.00%
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Grant Date:- October 1. 2018

Share price INR 6,821 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.94-8.03%
Annualized Volatility 58.00-74.00%

Grant Date:- January 1, 2019

Share price INR 6,823 per share
Weighted average exercise price INR 90 each
Dividend yield % 0%
Expected life (years) 4

Risk free interest rate 7.10-7.40%
Annualized Volatility 51.00-52.00%

Notes:

1  Weighted average share price is based on the value of Equity Shares arrived at by using Discounted Cash Flow
Method or Backsolve method and share prices based on secondary transactions, where available.

2. Dividend yield is considered zero, as no dividend payout is expected in the foreseeable future.

3. Risk free return is based on the yield to maturity of Indian treasury securities, with a maturity corresponding to the
expected term of ESOP.

4. Annualized volatility is based on the median weekly volatility of selected comparables companies for a time period

commensurate with the expected term.
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25 Related party transaclions

A. Entitics over which company exercise control

Country of
Name : e
incarporation
Indian Subsidiarics
OneY7 Commnnications ladia Limited India
Paytm Financial Services Limited India
Pavim Entedainment Lunited India
Paytm Money Limited b
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited India
Mobiguest Mobile Technologies Privale Limited India
Lefa Money Pravate Limited
Lnthe Internet Privite Limied
0oROL Private Limited (w ¢ [June 01. 2018)
Chibyzan Technologies Prvate Linined (we T Junc (11, 2018)
Paytn Services Privale Limited (Formerly known as Balance Technology Private Limiled) (w e T
July 31, 2018) India
Cuibet Softwanc Private Linited (from Novemiber 1. 2018 till September 19, 2019) India
Payim lnsnrance Brokamg Privete Limited (w ¢ £ Sep 28, 2019) India
Foreign Suhsldinries
ne97 Communications Nigeria Limited Nigeria
nev7 Communications FZ-LLC Dubai
One97 Communications Singaporc Private Limiled Singapore
Oned? LISA Inc. USA
Subsidiaries of Subsidiarics
Une97 Communications Rwanda Privale Limited Rwanda
tineY7 Commumications Tanzania Privale Limiled Taniig
|L1et7 Conimminications Danpgladesh Privae Lintied Bangladesh
OnedT Upanida Linuted Uganda
(IneY7 lvory Coast SA Ivory Coast
neY7 Benin SA Benin
Pavim Lahs Inc Canada
Nned7 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn Malaysia
Nearbuy India Private Limited India
Xceed 1T Sofution Private Limited India
One Ninc Seven C i Nepal Private Limited (we (. November 20, 2018) Nepal
Dt Nine Seven Dipgital Sehutions Lid (we € June 2, 2019) Kemva
Fiiwcallect Services Private Liniled (w e [ September 25. 2019) India
One Nine Seven Communications Saudi Arabia For Communication and Infonnation
Technology (w ¢ f. December 25. 2019) Saudi
Controlled Trust
Ometd7 Emplovee welfare Trun® Tudia_
* Ci i in thesc (inanciat of the Company
B. Joint Venture of Payim Entertainment Limited
Country of
Name B et
incorporation
Paytm First Games Private Limiled (formerly known as Gamepind Entertainment Privaie India
Limited) ('Paytm Firsi*
P First Guiies Singapore Ple. Led. (woe Sy 20 20200 (eholly owned subidin of Singapore
P Farst Gaumes Provate Linniedi®

* The entity is into business of online gaming It is a strategic investment which utilises group's knowledge and expentisc in online space

C. Entities over which company exercise significant influence

Country of
Name : :
incorporation
Loinext ions Private Limited India
Socomo T vies Private Limiled India
Puytm Payinents Bank Lusiied India
OoROL Privale Limited (1ill May 31. 2018 ) India
Pavtin General Limiled Tndia
Povim Life Insun Limited India

Infinitv Transofi Solution Private Liniled {w e { August 16, 20191

Ealgnod Technologies Piivule Liml

(e [ December 2, 2019)

Bluefoce Technologies Private Linied (w.e 0 Apnd 26, 2019 ull Febrpary 1, 2020) Indin
Ilndm
India

D. Key Management Personnel

Vijay Shekhar Sl

E. Entities having significant influence over the Company

SAIF 111 Mauritius Company Limited

SAIF Partners India V Limited

SAIF Puoers India 1V Limied

SAIF India V FII Holdings Limited

Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited (1ill Januany 7, 2020)
Alibaba com Singapore E-Commeree Private |
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pic Linnted
SVF India Holdings (Caymnan) Limited
ANTFIN (Netherlands) Holding B V  {froiu Junuwary 8. 2020)

Chamrmman sl Managing Director

Madlur Deora 8 mancial Officer (il September 3, 014} !
Vikas Garg Chiel Financisl Offices (w.e { March | 2000} i

F. Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the voting power of (he Company (hat gives the control or signlficant influence

Ajay Shekhar Sharma Brother of Mr Vijay Shekhar Shanna




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020

(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Details of transactions with related parties during the period ended March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:-

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Rendering of services to related parties
One97 Communications Nigeria Ltd 0.05 0.14
One97 Communications FZ-LLC 0.99 0.20
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 8.37 6.16
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 875.24 927.75
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 495 1.10
Nearbuy India Private Limited 3.20 2.64
Little Internet Private Limited 0.19 0.90
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 2.07 0.64
Paytm Labs Inc. - 0.12
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.28 0.14
One97 Uganda Limited - 0.02
One97 Benin SA ki 0.02
Paytm Money Limited 2.46 0.74
Paytm First Games Private Limited 8.84 1.41
Infinity Transoft Solution Private Limited 1.50 -
| Eatgood Technologies Private Limited 0.53 -
Socomo Technologies Private Limited - 0.02
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn 21.14 -
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 0.02 -
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.10 -
One Nine Seven Communication Nepal Private Limited 4.81 0.05
934.74 942.05
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 94.53 146.59
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.02 0.15
Paytm Moneyv Limited 4.71 1.51
Paytm First Games Private Limited 4.24 226
Paytm Labs Inc. 5.64 13.94
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn - 8.58
Paytm Services Private Limited 0.19 -
Paytm Insurance Broking Private Limited 0.27 -
109.60 173.03
Interest income earned from related parties
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 2.64 3.86
Urja Money Private Limited 0.23 0.24
Little Internet Private Limited 0.21 -
3.08 4.10
Gain on sale of business
Pavtm First Games Private Limited - 42.20
— 42.20
Purchase of nproperty. nlant & equipment from related parties
One97 Ivory Coast SA 0.16 -
QoROL Private Limited - 0.17
Paytm Services Private Limited - 0.01
0.16 0.18
Sale of property. plant & equipment to related parties
One Nine Seven Communication Nepal Private Limited 0.14 -
Paytm Monev Limited 0.17 0.15
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 18.57 -
18.88 0.15




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Services received from related parties
|_-Payment gateway expenses
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 968.97 918.30
968.97 918.30
|__-Legal and professional fees
Paytm Labs Inc. 95.75 63.42
95.75 63.42
-General expenses
Paytm Pavments Bank Limited 109.13 7.11
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited 79.34 51.03
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 2.03 5.46
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 9.03 -
Urja Money Private Limited 0.82 -
Fincollect Services Private Limited 0.51 -
Paytm Services Private Limited 27.83
Little Internet Private Limited 0.11 -
Nearbuy India Private Limited 0.44 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.32 -
229.56 63.60
Issue of equity shares
SAIF Partners India IV Limited - 0.13
Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 0.79 -
0.79 0.13
Security premium received
SAIF Partners India IV Limited - 99.94
Alipay Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 1.432.23 -
1,432.23 99.94
Inter corporate loan given
Urja Money Private Limited - 0.22
Little Internet Private Limited 7.00 -
7.00 0.22
Investment in subsidiaries
One97 Communications India Limited - 43.00
Paytm Entertainment Limited 80.48 61.00
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited - 84.68
Paytm Money Limited 79.99 68.87
Balance Technology Private Limited - 1.60
Uria Money Private Limited 8.00 8.00
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited - 126.53
Little Internet Private Limited (refer note 11(a)(e))} - (1.04)
Cube26 Software Private Limited 0.74
QoRQL Private Limited - 0.56
Paytm Insurance Broking Private Limited 5.00 -
173.47 393.94
Stack Ontions granted to emplovees of Groun Companies
Paytm Entertainment Limited 3.29 2.82
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 19.83 14.21
Paytm Money Limited 5.70 1.48
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 16.12 739
Paytm Insurance Broking Private Limited 0.53 -
Pavtm Services Private Limited 0.08 B
0One97 Communications India Limited & -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 0.01 -
45.56 25,90
Investment in associates
Paytm General Insurance Limited - 0.05
Pavtm Life Insurance Limited . 0.05
Blueface Technologies Private Limited 9.86 -
Infinity Transoft Solution Private Limited 10.00 -
Eatgood Technologies Private Limited 49.00 -
68.86 0.10




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Details of balances outstanding with related parties as at March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019:-

Particulars March 31, 2020 ~ March 31,2019
Other financial assets (Other receivable for expenditure incurred)
One97 Benin SA 0.50 0.46
0One97 Communications FZ-LLC 0.21 0.02
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 1.22 1.11
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.02 -
One97 Ivory Coast SA 0.22 0.20
One97 Uganda Limited - 0.01
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 2.00 1.86
Paytm Labs Inc. 53.38 71.21
Paytm Money Limited 2.47 0.88
Paytm First Games Private Limited 6.36 1.22
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.48 0.44
Alibaba.com Singapore E-Commerce Private Limited 0.08 0.08
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 7.55 16.71
One97 Communications India Limited 0.03 0.25
Paytm Insurance Broking Private Limited 0.13 -
One Nine Seven Communication Nepal Private Limited 0.35 0.05
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn - 8.55
| Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 0.04 -
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 0.06 -
75.10 103.05
Loss allowance for other receivable for expenditure incurred
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 0.55 0.55
One97 Communications Rwanda Private Limited 0.46 0.46
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.63 0.63
One97 Ivory Coast SA 0.33 0.33
One97 Benin SA 0.45 045
One97 Uganda Limited 0.76 0.76
Paytm Labs Inc. 0.21 0.21
3.39 3.39
Amount receivable for sale of business (Other financial assets
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 27.50 4098
27.50 40.98
Other current asset
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 150.11 105.98
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 11.85 5.86
Paytm Services Private Limited 4.96 -
Little Internet Private Limited - 0.18
Paytm Financial Services Limited 0.01 -
166.93 112.02
Inter corporate loan receivable (including accrued interest)
Little Internet Private Limited 7.19 -
Urja Money Private Limited - 2.42
7.19 2.42
Amount receivable from pavment gateway
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 286.39 511.03
286.39 511.03
Trade receivables
Onc97 Communications Nigeria Limited 17.33 15.99
One97 Benin SA 0.01 001
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.08 0.07
One97 Uganda Limited - 0.04
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 8.39 6.04
Paytm Money Limited 047 0.34
Paytm Labs Inc - 12.06
Paytm Pavments Bank Limited 4.06 16.14
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 0.07 -
Fincollect Services Private Limited 1.27 -
One Nine Seven Communication Nepal Private Limited 3.83 -
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn 26.92 -
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 3.67 1.18
66.10 51.87




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Loss allowance for Trade receivables
One97 Communications Nigeria Limited 13.00 6.00
13.00 6.00
Other financial assets
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 114.32 0.13
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 0.03 0.11
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 1.71 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.49 0.46
Nearbuy India Private Limited 0.20 -
Paytm Insurance Broking Private Limited 0.01 -
One97 Communications Nigeria Ltd 0.03 -
One97 Communications FZ-LLC 0.39 -
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited 0.12 -
One97 Benin SA 0.00 -
One97 Communications Bangladesh Private Limited 0.10 -
One97 Communications Singapore Private Limited 0.02 -
One Nine Seven Communication Nepal Private Limited 0.19 -
One97 Communications Malaysia Sdn. Bdn 0.79 -
118.40 0.70
Trade pavables (including accrued expenses)
Paytm Labs Inc. - 45.42
One97 Communications India Limited 0.12 -
Alipay Labs (Singapore) Pte Limited 80.90 40.88
Paytm Payments Bank Limited 8.61 16.73
Orbgen Technologies-Private Limited 0.04 7.79
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 4.43 9.46
Pavtm First Games Private Limited 0.04 -
Paytm Services Private Limited 4.93 -
Urja Money Private Limited 0.77 -
Fincollect Services Private Limited 0.51 -
Paytm Insurance Broking Private Limited 0.94 -
Mobiquest Mobile Technologies Private Limited 0.05 -
Paytm General Insurance Limited 0.02 -
Pavtm Entertainment Limited 0.01 -
Nearbuy India Private Limited 0.05 -
Little Internet Private Limited 0.09 -
Pavim Money Limited 0.33 0.26
101.84 120.54
Other financial liabilitv
-Pavable to merchants
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.02 0.02
Little Internet Private Limited - 0.12
Pavtm Pavments Bank Limited 13.17 241.29
Nearbuy India Private Limited 0.48 1.93
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 0.28 1.24
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited 0.78 -
Paytm First Games Private Limited 7.97 0.09
Fincollect Services Private Limited 0.01 -
22.71 244.69
-Pavable on purchase of fixed assets
Orbgen Technologies Private Limited 221 1.42
QoRQL Private Limited 0.12 0.17
One97 Ivory Coast SA 0.17 -
Paytm Services Private Limited 0.0! 0.01
2.51 1.60
-Others
One97 Communications Tanzania Private Limited - 0.53
One97 Uganda Limited - 0.05
One97 USA Inc. - 2.52
- 3.10
Other amount received from customers (Other financial liabilities)
Socomo Technologies Private Limited 0.02
Wasteland Entertainment Private Limited - 0.02
Little Internet Private Limited - 0.11
- 0.15




One97 Communications Limited

CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Contract Liabilities

Infinity Transoft Solution Private Limited 0.16 -

Orbgen Technologies Private Limited - 0.02
0.16 0.02

Balances with banks on current account
Paytm Payments Bank Limited

-

*

Investments

For details of investments in subsidiaries and associates refer notes 5and 6

* Amount helow rounding off norms adopted by the Company

Remuneration to KMP & Relatives of Individuals owning interest in the voting power of the Company thai gives the controi or

significant influence

Particulars March 31, 2020 March 31,2019

Salaries, bonus and incentives 5.62 6.08
ESOP Expenses 4.54 9.37
Total compensation paid 10.16 15.45

Terms and conditions of transactions with related parties

(i) The services provided and received from related parties are made on terms equivalent to those that prevail in arm’s length transactions.
Outstanding balances at the period end are unsecured and interest free and settlement occurs in cash. There have been no guarantees provided

or received for any related party receivables or payables.

(i) The remuneration to the key managerial personnel (‘KMP’) does not include the provisions made for gratuity, leave benefits as they are

determined on an actuarial basis for the Company as a whole
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Oney? Communications Limited

CIN: UT2200DL2000PLC108985

Notes to the Standalone Financial $ for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR crores. unless otherwise stated)

27. Income Tax
The major components of income fax expense for the sears cnded March 31. 2020 and M

Standalone Stutement of Profit and Loss:

arch 312019 arc

March 31, 2020

Current income [ax

Alarch 31. 2014

Current income tax charge

[[ATES

i

Adjustments in respect of current income tax of previous \car expense/{credit)

Deferred tax:

Relating to origination and reversal of lemporary differences

Inceome b expeie reporiod i ihe Standalone St

.05

hi?

Reconcilintinn of tas expease s (he sceounting profil mudlipted by Didia’s domestic s vate

Accounting profit before incime ta inchuding discontinued operations

Tue Mareh 31, 2020 and Slarch 31, 2009:

9521

Tax af India’s statutony income fas rate of 25 17% {31 March 2019: 31 20%)

(123537

Lo expense during the vear for Linc?? Employ ec Welfare Trust (Refer note 25)

12

Dther non-deductible expenses

{073}

Losses on which deferred taves not recognised*

1302 71 |

Linahsorbed depreciation on which deferred taxes not recognised*

2676

Other temporary differcnces on which deferred taxes not recognised*

Income tax expense reported in the statement of profit and loss

Deferved iax relates b the following:

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2020

March 31, 2000

Temporary
Differences

Tax

Movement in
statement of Profit

and Loss

Temporary
Differences

| Dreferced v liahilithes

Aceelerated deprocianion for las purposes

(2:32)

(2087

(9.32)

Dnrealived girin on mestmunts

4577

(2304

11365

3596

111 5%)

| Deferted tax uwets

Unabsorbed depreciniion

4877

1152

3326

143,82

447

Net deferred tas assets/(linhilities) *

Nil

Nit

Nl

il

Nil

* Deferred tax has been recognised 1o the cxlent of as ailable deferred Lax liabilities since il is not probable that taxable profits will be available against which the unutilsed 1ax losses and temporary differcnces can be

ulilised, as assessed al March 31 2020 and March 31,2019

Deductible temporary difficrences Toe which oo deforréd Lax siset is reco,

e Stnodalone Balance Sheet:

Expiry Date A
Particulars (Year ending March Asior M"‘h_'"’ Zitii
31) March 31, 2020 impact
I > ‘@ 25.171%
Tax Losses W23 33161 83 46
2004 1.494 29 376 04
2025 717583 [EIEL]
2026 130 00 337 50 |
2027 3703 1 947 2%
2008 212750 53548
Total inx losses N 9.775.7% 2.460.36
Unabsorbed depreciation No expiry neriod 28532 7181
Dither temnarars dif (PR Wi
Totul TIRI.S6 2.764.34
Asol
Expiry Date Asof Murch 31, 2019 Tax
Particulars (Year en;i:r;g March March 31, 2019 impact
E 2 0%
Tax Losses - o nn ERIN] 103 46
2034 1,494 29 466 22
2025 T 717:58 223 87
2026 1,300 1% 41539
2027 3761 8] 117331
Tatal tax lnsees T 425 2386.25
Unahsorbed dep c Mo axpiry period 89 39 2749
Other temporary diflerences 433 16 135 15 |
Total #,1 7080 2549.29
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
{Amounts in INR crores, unless otherwise stated)

28. Commitments and contingencies

i)

iii)

a. Leases
(i) Operating lease: Company as Lessee

The Company has taken certain office space on operating lease. Rental expense towards leases charged to Standalone Statement
of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 amount to INR 5.88 (March 31, 2019 INR 17.89).

The company leases various offices under non-cancellable operating leases. The leases have varying terms, escalation clauses and
renewal rights. On renewal, the terms of the leases are rencgotiated. On renewal, the terms of the leases are renegofiated. From
April 1, 2019, the group has recognised right-of-use assets for these leases, except for short-term leases, sce note 2.2p for further
informafion.

Future minimum rentals payable under non-cancellable operating leases are as follows:

Particulars March 31,2020 March 31, 2019
Not later than one year - 16.26
Later than one year but not later than five years - 17.02

Later than five years £ =

Total - 33.28

(ii) Operating lease: Company as Lessor

The Company has given point of sale (POS) machine on operating lease. Rental income towards leases recognised in Standalone
Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended March 31, 2020 amount to INR 31.28 (March 31, 2019 INR Nil).

b. Capital commitments

Estimated amount of contracts towards property, plant & equipment remaining to be executed on capital account and not
provided for is INR 86.96 (Net of capital advance of INR 5.22) [March 31 2019: INR 39.75 (Net of capital advances of INR
1.97)].

¢. Contingent liabilities

March 31, 2020 March 31,2019
Claims against the Company not acknowledged 46.54 6.44
as debts
Total 46.54 6.44

The Company has contingent liability towards Bank Guarantees amounting to INR 377.31 (March 31, 2019: INR 263.32)

The Company will continue to assess the impact of further developments relating to retrospective application of Supreme Court
judgement dated February 28, 2019 clarifying the definition of ‘basic wages' under Employees’ Provident Fund and
Miscellaneous Provisions Act 1952 and deal with it accordingly. In the assessment of the management, the aforesaid matter is not
likely to have a significant impact and accordingly, no provision has been made in these Standalone Financial Statements.

Notes:

1) It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any.

2) The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
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29. Details of dues to Micro and Small Enterprises as per MSMED Act, 2006

March 312020  March 312019

The principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid

to any supplier as at the end of each accounting year
- Principal amount due under MSMED Act 9.99
- Interest due on above 0.12

10.27
0.17

10.11

10.44

The amount of interest paid by the buyer in terms of section 16 of the
MSMED Act 2006 along with the amounts of the payment made to
the supplier beyond the appointed day during each accounting year

The amount of interest due and payable for the period of delay in
making payment (which have been paid but beyond the appointed day
during the year) but without adding the interest specified under the
MSMED Act 2006.

The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of
each accounting year, for payment already made

The amount of further interest remaining due and payable even in the
earlier years, until such date when the interest dues as above are
actually paid to the small enterprise for the purpose of disallowance
as a deductible expenditure under section 23 of the MSMED Act
2006

Principal amounts paid to suppliers registered under the MSMED
Act, beyond the appointed day during the year

1.22

45.86

Total Oustanding dues of micro and small enterprises is INR 11.33 ( March 31, 2019: INR 11.24).

0.80

38.92
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Notes to the Standal Fi ial S for the year ended March 31, 2020
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30. Fair value
Fair value hierarchy
The following table provides the fair value measurement hierarchy of the Company's assels and liabilities
Level | - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2 — Inputs other than quoted prices included wathin Level | that are observable for the asset or liability, erther directly (1 e as prices) or mdirectly (i e derived from prices)

Level 3 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not hase on observable market dala (unobservable inputs).

The following table presents fair value hierarchy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value ona recurring basis as of March 31, 2020

Fair value measurement at end of the

As of March 31, 2020 : N
reporting year using
o —— — = Level 1 Level 2 Leveld

Assets
Investments at fair value through OCI

Investment in Equity shares 268 265
Investments at fair value through Profit and loss

1 in Compulsorily C ible Prefe 5967 5967

Investment in Equity shares 1320 1320

Investment in Mutual Funds 2,192 60 2,192 60 .
Derivative Assets at fair value through Profit and loss

Denvative Assel 2093 2093
The following able pi fair value hi hy of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basts as of March 31, 2019

As of March 31,2019

Fair value measurement al end of the
reporting year using
Level } Level2  Level3

Assets -

Investments at fair value through OCI
Investment in Equity Shares

Investments at {arr value through Profit and loss

303 303

Investment in Compulsorily Convertible Preference 8958 8958
Investment in Equity Shares 758 - 758
Investment in Mutual Funds 237360 2,373 60

The management has assessed that fair value of alt other fi ial assets and liabilities including cash and cash equivalents, bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents, trade recetvables, loans, other

fi | assets, in trade payables, b ings and other financial liabilities, approxi their carrying amounts

(This space is intentionally left blank)
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

31. Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Company’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks, including market risk, credit risk and liquidity
risk. The Company continues to focus on a system-based approach to business risk management. The Company’s
financial risk management process seeks to enable the early identification, evaluation and effective management of
key risks facing the business. Backed by strong internal control systems, the current Risk Management Framework
rests on policies and procedures issued by appropriate authorities; process of regular internal reviews/audits to set
appropriate risk limits and controls; monitoring of such risks and compliance confirmation for the same.

a. Market Risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. Market prices comprise three types of risk: interest rate risk, foreign currency risk and
price risk. The Company has in place appropriate risk management policies to limit the impact of these risks on its
financial performance. The Company ensures optimization of cash through fund planning and robust cash
management practices.

(i) Interest Rate Risk

Interest rate risk refers to the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate
because of changes in market interest rates.

The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the Company’s
borrowings with floating interest rates.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in interest rates, being a 0.5%
increase or decrease in interest rate, with all other variables held constant, of the Company’s loss before tax due to
the impact on floating rate borrowings.

As at March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019

Effect on loss before tax:
I-Base*- decrease by 50 bps (1.01) (3.48)
I-Base*- increase by 50 bps 1.01 3.48

*[CICI Bank Base Rate

Other financial assets and liabilities of the Company are either non-interest bearing or fixed interest bearing
instruments, the Company’s net exposure to interest risk on such instruments is negligible.

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying interest rate of the
Company’s borrowings while assuming all other variables to be constant.
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Based on the movements in the interest rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the reporting
date, the Company’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are reasonable
benchmarks.

(it) Price risk
The Company invests its surplus funds in various debt instruments and debt mutual funds. These comprise of
primarily liquid schemes of mutual funds (liquid investments), debentures and fixed deposits. All mutual fund

investments are in liquid scheme only.

Mutual fund investments are susceptible to market price risk, mainly arising from changes in the interest rates or
market yields which may impact the return and value of such investments.

Set out below is the impact of a 0.25% movement in the NAV of mutual funds on the Company’s loss before tax:

—Ch;h_ge iﬁ NAV j Eﬂ'ect on loss before tax
March 31, 2020 0.25% (7.89)
- ] i -0.25% - 78
March 31, 2019 0.25% (6.18)
-0.25% 6.18

The Company is also exposed to equity/ preference shares price risk arises from investments held by the Company
and classified in the balance sheet either as fair value through OCI or at fair value through profit or loss (refer note
7(a) and 7(b)). To manage its price risk arising from investments in equity/ preference shares, the company
diversifies its portfolio. Diversification of the portfolio is done in accordance with the limits set by the company.
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CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

(iii) Foreign currency risk

The Indian Rupee is the Company’s most significant currency. As a consequence, the Company’s results are
presented in Indian Rupee and exposures are managed against Indian Rupee accordingly. Foreign currency risk is
the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of an exposure will fluctuate because of changes in foreign
exchange rates. The Company’s exposure to the risk of changes in foreign exchange rates relates primarily to the
Company’s operating activities (when revenue or expense is denominated in a foreign currency).

The carrying amounts of the Company’s financial assets and liabilities denominated in United States Dollar (USD),
and Canadian Dollar (CAD) are as follows:

As at March 31, 2020 As at March 31, 2019

Financial assets Financial liabilities Financial assets Financial liabilities

Amount in USD Crores 0.56 0.33 0.71 0.26
Amount in CAD Crores 0.78 - 1.47 0.87

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in USD and
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in USD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2020 10% strengthening of USD against INR (1.96)
10% weakening of USD against INR i 1.60
March 31, 2019 10% strengthening of USD against INR - (3.48) -
10% weakening of USD against INR 2.85

The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity of profit or loss to a reasonably possible change in CAD and
exchange rates, with all other variables held constant.

Change in CAD rate Effect on loss before tax
March 31, 2020 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (4.63)
10% weakening of CAD against INR 3.79
March 31, 2019 10% strengthening of CAD against INR (3.41)
10% weakening of CAD against INR 2.79

The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for all other currencies is not material

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a reasonably possible change in the under-lying foreign currency against
the functional currency while assuming all other variables to be constant.

W
S
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31, 2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

Based on the movements in the foreign exchange rates historically and the prevailing market conditions as at the
reporting date, the Company’s management has concluded that the above mentioned rates used for sensitivity are
reasonable benchmarks.

b. Credit Risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument or contract,
leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from its operating activities (primarily trade
receivables) including deposits with banks. Management has a credit policy in place and the exposure to credit risk
is monitored on an ongoing basis.

All of the entity's investments and loans at amortised cost are considered to have low credit risk, and the loss
allowance recognised during the period was therefore limited to 12 months expected losses. Management considers
instruments to be low credit risk when they have a low risk of default and the issuer has a strong capacity to meet
its contractual cash flow obligations in the near term.

(i) Trade receivables

The Company is exposed to credit risk in the event of non-payment by customers. Customer credit risk is managed
subject to the Company’s established policy, procedures and control relating to customer credit risk management.
An impairment analysis is performed at &ach reporting date by grouping the receivables in homogeneous group.
The calculation is based on lifetime expected credit losses.

Expected credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach- year ended March 31, 2020

Ageing in years 0-1 1-2 2-3 >3 Specific Total
Gross  carrying amount- trade | 316.94 | 19.23 11.05 | 16.11 71.86 435.19
receivables - L B
Expected loss rate (%) 251 | 37.13 | 5886 | 8829 | 100

Expected credit losses (Loss allowance 7.97 7.14 6.50 | 14.22 71.86 107.69
provision)- trade receivables - | |
Carrying amount of trade receivables | 308.97 | 12.09 4.55 1.89 0.00 327.50
(net of impairment) 3

Expected credit loss for trade receivable under simplified approach- year ended March 31, 2019

_Ageing in years | 01 | 12 2-3 >3 Specific Total
Gross  carrying amount-  trade | 231.83 | 16.03 7.30 9.82 5144 316.42
receivables o |
Expected loss rate (%) 224 | 17.17 77.94 | 93.08 100 o
Expected credit losses (Loss allowance 5.19 2.75 5.69 9.14 51.44 74.21

_provision)- trade receivables o - L
Carrying amount of trade receivables | 226.64 | 13.28 1.61 0.68 0.00 242.21
(net of impairment) - |
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Reconciliation of loss allowance Loss allowance measured
- at 12 month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2018 61.52

Creation during the year ) 12.69

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 ) 74.21 N

Creation during the year 3348

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2020 107.69

The maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date is the carrying value of each class of financial assets.
The Company does not hold collateral as security.

(ii) Other financial assets

Credit risk from balances with banks and financial institutions is managed by the Company’s treasury department
in accordance with the Company’s policy. Investment of surplus funds is made only with banks of high repute.

The Company’s maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of the balance sheet at March 31, 2020 and
March 31, 2019 is the carrying amounts as disclosed in Note 7.

Reconciliation of loss allowance_ Loss allowance measured at
12 month expected loss

Loss allowance as on April 1, 2018 | 13.87
Creation during the year ) 10.47
Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2019 - 24.34
Creation during the year 228

Loss Allowance as on March 31, 2020 26.62




One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
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¢. Liquidity Risk

The Company’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity of funding and flexibility through the use of
bank overdrafts, working capital loans etc. Company monitor their risk of shortage of funds using cash flow
forecasting models. These models consider the maturity of their financial investments, committed funding and
projected cash flows from operations.

The Company’s objective is to provide financial resources to meet its business objectives in a timely, cost effective
and reliable manner. A balance between continuity of funding and flexibility is maintained through the use of bank
borrowings. The Company also monitors compliance with its debt covenants. The maturity profile of the
Company’s financial liabilities based on contractual undiscounted payments is given in the table below:

Particulars 0-180 days | 181-365 days | More than 1 year | Total

As at March 31, 2020 |

Borrowings 193.43 766 - 201.09 |
Lease liability 15.50 18.60 169.90 204.00 |
Trade payables 573.38 o = 573.38
Other financial liabilities 199.15 . = ~ 199.15
Total 981.46 26.26 169.90 1,177.62
As at March 31, 2019 -

Borrowings* i 695.50 i ; 26.96 722.46 |
Trade payables 673.28 - = 673.28
Other financial liabilities* 694.56 4.62 B - 699.18
Total 2,063.34 4.62 26.96 2,094.92

*Includes Deferred payment liabilities of INR 36.91 to Noida Authority in respect of land acquired on finance lease
and in current year this is presented as lease liability on account of adoption of Ind AS 116 w.e.f April 1, 2019.
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32. Discontinued Operations

During the previous year, on April 9, 2018, shareholders of the Company approved the transfer of online gaming
business forming part of Cloud segment on a going concern basis by way of slump sale, to Paytm First Games
Private Limited (formerly known as Gamepind Entertainment Private Limited). Paytm First Games Private Limited,
is an Indian Joint Venture company with 56.93% (March 31, 2019: 55%) shares held by Paytm Entertainment
Limited (wholly owned subsidiary of the Company) and 43.07% shares held by AGTech Media Holdings Limited.
The Company had transferred its online gaming business on June 1, 2018 to Paytm First Games Private Limited on
a going concern basis for a cash consideration of INR 33.91. The net liabilities of the business transferred were INR
8.29. The Company had recognised a gain of INR 42.20 which had been disclosed as exceptional gain in the

Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss.

The results of Gaming business for the year are presented below:

For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Revenue
- 1.53
Expenses (Including INR Nil (March 31, 2019: 0.11) for share
based payment expenses) 6.84
Profit/ (Loss) for the year before tax from discontinued
operations - (5.31)
Income Tax expense - -
Profit/ (Loss) for the year after tax from discontinued o
operations - (5.31)
The net cash flows incurred by Gaming business are as follows:-
For the year ended For the year ended
March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Operating - (5.3D)
Investing - 33.91
Financing -
Net cash inflow/(outflow) - 28.60
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Details of the gaming business sold:-

For the year ended For the year ended

Consideration Received March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Cash - 33.91
Carrying amount of the net liability sold - 829

Gain on sale before income tax - 42.20
Income tax expense on gain - B -

Gain on sale after income tax* _ “ - 42.20

* The entire amount is attributable to equity holders of the company

The carrying amount of assets and liabilities as at the date of sale (June 1, 2018) were as follows:-

Carrying Amount
Property, plant and equipment 0.09 -
Total assets 0.09
Trade Payable 707
Other current liabilities _ 1.31
Total liabilities 8.38
Net assets (8.29)

33. Capital Management

The Company’s objectives while managing capital is to safeguard its ability to continue as a going concern and to
generate adequate returns for its shareholders and ensuring benefits for other stakeholders. The key objective of the
Company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a stable capital structure with the focus on total
equity, uphold investor; creditor and customer confidence, and ensure future development of its business activities.
The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions
or its business requirements.

Company's capital management objective is to remain majorly a debt-free company till the time it achieves break-
even. In order to meet this objective, Company meets anticipated funding requirements for developing new
businesses, expanding its geographical base, entering in to strategic mergers and acquisitions and other strategic
investments, by issuance of equity capital together with cash generated from Company’s operating and investing
activities. The company utilizes certain working capital facilities in the form of short term bank overdraft and term
loans to meet anticipated interim working capital requirements.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the years ended
March 31, 2020 and March 31, 2019.
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34. Segment Reporting

The Board of Directors (chief operating decision maker or CODM) monitor the operating results of the business
segments separately for the purpose of making decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment.
Segment’s performance is evaluated based on segment revenue and segment result viz. profit or loss before tax
from continuing operations.

For management purposes, the Company is organized into business segments based on its services and has four
reportable segments, as follows:

- Payments: Includes the services provided by acting as a payment facilitator to third party merchants and money
transfer facilitator to consumers.

- Commerce: Includes acting as an aggregator for digital product like movie, deal, online travel aggregator and
provision of services like advertisement, brand promotion and technical support.

- Cloud: Includes provision of services to client for their various business needs like hosting services, marketing
services.

- Others: Includes other businesses of the Company like wealth management services.

No operating segments have been aggregated to form the above reportable segments.

The Online Gaming business was included in the ‘Cloud’ segment in Company’s operating segments until June 1,
2018, being the date on which transfer of Online Gaming business was consummated. Being a discontinued
operation, this business is no longer presented within the Cloud segment. The information about this discontinued
segment is provided in note 32.

Segment assets comprise assets directly managed by each segment, and primarily include receivables, property,
plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress, intangibles assets, intangible assets under development. Segment
liabilities primarily include operating liabilities. Segment assets/ liabilities are measured in the same way as in the
Standalone financial statements. These assets/ liabilities are allocated based on the operations of the segment and
the physical location of the asset.

The Company has revenues primarily from customers domiciled in India. Substantially all of the Company’s non-
current operating assets are domiciled in India. There is no inter segment revenue.

Information about major customers

1. Revenues of INR 875.24 (March 31, 2019 INR 927.75) are derived from an external customer. These revenues
are attributed to the Payments segment.

2. Revenues of INR 647.32 (March 31, 2019 INR 992.48) are derived from another external customer. These
revenues are attributed to the Payments and Commerce segment.

Adjustments and eliminations

(i) Other income including fair value gains and losses on financial assets and finance costs are not allocated to
individual segments as the underlying instruments are managed at Company level.

(ii) Current taxes, deferred taxes and certain financial assets and liabilities are not allocated to those segments as
they are also managed at Company level.
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Impact of change in accounting policy on segment reporting

The adoption of new leasing standard described in note 2.2p had the following impact on the segment disclosures in

the current year:

| Payments | Commerce | Cloud Others Unallocated | Total
Segment result (increase 29.12 2.88 2.04 0.51 - 34.55
in profit) _ _ B
Increase in depreciation 25.68 2.54 1.80 0.45 . 30.47
and amortization expense |
Increase in interest 14.26 1.41 1.00 0.25 - 16.92
expenses B o
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC108985
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

35. Details of Transactions and outstanding balances of Paytm E-Commerce Private Limited (PEPL)

_Details of transactions entered during the year

March 31, 2020 March 31, 2019
Rendering of services to PEPL 392.06 992.48
Other operating revenue - Recovery of marketing expense 255.26 -
Reimbursement of expenses incurred on behalf of PEPL 114.09 144.86
Interest Income on unwinding of Discount 22.13 31.66
Services received from PEPL ) ~50.00 25.25
Sale of Property, Plant & Equipment - _ 0.19 -
Purchase of Property, Plant & Equipment N 0.45 21.28
Details of outstanding balances - ]
- - _ March 31, 2020 March 31,2019 |
| Other Financial Assets o ~ 693.83 405.66 ]
Trade payables - - 9.54
Other Financial Liability - _ 7.15 43.22
| Contract liabilities ] 622.49 339.06
Trade Receivable - 1932 | 1.80

36. Overdue outstanding foreign currency receivable and payable

The Company has foreign currency payable balances aggregating to INR 0.06 and INR 0.13 which are outstanding
for more than twelve months (extended from six months via RBI circular - RBI/2019-20/242 A.P. (DIR Series)
Circular No.33 dated May 22, 2020) and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2020. The Company has applied
to authorised dealer for extension of the time for payment of these payable balances vide its letters dated March 18,
2019, May 14, 2019, August 21, 2019, November 25, 2019 and February 24, 2020. The Company also has foreign
currency receivable balances aggregating to INR 25.88 and INR 0.53 which are outstanding for more than fifteen
months (extended from nine months via RBI circular- RBI/2019-20/206 A. P. (DIR Series) Circular No. 27 dated
April 01, 2020) and three years respectively, as of March 31, 2020. The Company has applied to authorised dealer
for extension of time for realisation of receivable balances outstanding for more than nine months vide its letters
dated March 28, 2019, May 14, 2019, August 21, 2019, November 25, 2019 and February 24, 2020 and also applied
for permission to write-off receivable balances outstanding for more than three years vide its letters dated March 28,
2019. Management does not expect any material financial implication on account of the delays under the existing
regulations.

37. Transfer pricing

The Company has established a comprehensive system of maintenance of information and documents as required by
the transfer pricing legislation under sections 92-92F of the Income Tax Act, 1961. For this purpose, the Company
has appointed independent consultants for conducting Transfer Pricing Study. Management is of the opinion that its
international transactions with associated enterprises have been undertaken at arms' length basis at duly negotiated
prices on usual commercial terms. The transfer pricing study for the year ended March 31, 2019 has been completed
which did not result in any material adjustment.
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One97 Communications Limited
CIN: U72200DL2000PLC10898S
Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended March 31,2020
(Amounts in INR Crores, unless otherwise stated)

38. Corporate Social Responsibilities (CSR) expenditure

The Company has not earned net profit in three immediately preceding financial years, therefore, there was no
amount as per section 135 of the Act which was required to be spent on CSR activities in the current financial
year by the Company. However, the Company has spent an amount of INR 0.82 (March 31, 2019: INR 1.59) as

CSR expenditure.
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